VILLAGE OF ZEBALLOS
AGENDA for the regular meeting of Council held Tuesday, August 25th, 2020 at 7:00
pm at 157 Maquinna Avenue
We would like to acknowledge we are on unceded First Nations land of
Ehattesaht Chinehkint territory.
1.

CALL TO ORDER AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2.

ANNUAL REPORT
a) This meeting provides an opportunity for public input and
comment regarding the 2020 Annual Report as prepared and
available to the public since August 5, 2020.
b)

Sufficient Consultation
Suggested Motion: THAT Council is of the opinion that sufficient public
consultation has taken place during the 2020 Annual Report process
and that Council is now prepared to approve the 2020 Annual Report.

c)
3.

2020 Annual Report

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a) Minutes of the Regular Council meeting, July 28th, 2020.
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4.

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES (unfinished business)
a) Anti- Racial Discrimination and Anti-Racism Policy

5.

DELEGATIONS & PETITIONS

6.

CORRESPONDENCE
a) Correspondence from Michelle Babchuk, Strathcona Regional
District, re: Zeballos Tsunami Project
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b)

Correspondence from Tara Faganello, Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing, re: Ministerial Order 192.
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c)

Correspondence from Association of Vancouver Island Coastal
Communities, re: AVICC Executive Nomination Report, BC
Marine Trails, Southern Resident Killer Whales Regulations
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d)

Correspondence from BC Hydro, re: Street light update and
workshop invitation
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e)

Correspondence from The Province of BC, re: Provincial State of
Emergency Extension
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f)

Correspondence from Emerald Sea Protection Society, re:
Zeballos Marine Project
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g)

Correspondence from Hon. Selena Robinson, Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing, re: BC’s Recovery Conversation
and Consultation
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h)

Correspondence from Tara Faganello, Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing, re: Update on Order of the Provincial Health
Officer on Gatherings and Events and Ministerial Order M192

Page 87

i)

Correspondence from Mairi Edgar, Cascadia Seaweed, re:
Seaweed Farming Inventory of West Coast Vancouver Island
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j)

Correspondence from Stephanie McGowan, Town of Comox, re:
National Pharmacare Call to Action
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k)

Correspondence from Brian Bedford, Ministry of Municipal Affairs
and Housing, re: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program
Open for Application
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l)

Correspondence List – COVID-19 Related – July 24th to August
21st
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m)

Correspondence List – July 24th to August 21st
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7.

POSSIBILITIES
(items brought forward by Council from the miscellaneous
correspondence)

8.

REPORTS
a) Mayor and Council
i) Mayor Colborne - written report
ii) Councillor Janisse - verbal report

9.
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b)

CAO - written report
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c)

Committee of the Whole Report - August 11th, 2020
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d)

Committee of the Whole Report - August 18th, 2020
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BYLAWS
a)
Tax Sale Deferment Bylaw #534, 2020
First and Second Reading
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b)

Tax Sale Deferment Bylaw #534, 2020
Third Reading
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c)

Tax Sale Deferment Bylaw #534, 2020
Reconsider and Adopt
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10.

ADDITIONAL ITEMS (not included in agenda at time of production)

11.

NEW BUSINESS

12.

PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD

13.

ADJOURNMENT
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For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019
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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR
I’d like to congratulate this Council on its first full
year of this term at the council table. Starting the
year as we did, still affected by the repercussions
of the wildfire above the Village was not an easy
task, and therefore our plans of holding another
session besides LGLA newly elected officials’
session was put off. In March, that finally came
to fruition with the addition of a new Councillor
for 2020 and beyond. We did present the Annual
Report and had great discussion around Council
priorities for this new council and we will continue to see those reflected in our budgets. I am looking
forward to moving the budget discussions up next year, even more, so we may better equip our staff
with a clear way forward.
Emergency Affairs
As stated above, we started 2019 in a State of Emergency with Evacuation Orders still in place that I am
sure we were all glad to rescind in May of 2019. The Landslide Risk Assessment was completed in 2019
enabling us to make that decision based on the data. Last year saw an amazing opportunity to work with
Ehattesaht on our emergency planning and response, with training being held jointly and members from
Ka:'yu:'k't'h'/Che:k'tles7et'h' also participating. Thanks to Ehattesaht for including us in their training
and the foresight of our Protective Services Manager in making our cooperative sessions useful,
inclusive, and timely. Our work on the emergency front is not done in 2020, as we have applied for
funding to complete a Mitigation Feasibility report to carry forward last year’s work.
Bylaws
Last year saw us complete and update many, and some extremely old, bylaws, and finally have a way
forward with the enforcement of our bylaws. We also moved the utility service fees to be paid in
tandem with taxes. This came from listening to our constituents and trying to make paying for the
services we provide easier for them.
Working together with Ehattesaht First Nation
I truly believe, as does this Council, that the only way to properly represent the Village is to represent all
in the valley and of course that includes our neighbours and partners, the Ehattesaht Chinehkint First
Nation. This council has added an official acknowledgment of the land we live upon at each meeting and
on all emails as a way of continuing to build relationships and as part of reconciliation. Our teamwork
and relationships serve us both with opportunities that may be unavailable to places so small, rural and
remote. In 2019, we continued to have conversations and make headway in providing and partnering on
services for the Addition to Ehatis Reserve, including sewer projects, west side evacuation site,
coordinating emergency training and advocating for safer forest service roads. This was also the second
year we had official representation from the Ehattesaht Chinehkint Nation at UBCM. We are stronger
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together. Hish-uk-ish tsawak (everything is connected).
Spring cleanup
This council is continuing to provide opportunities to have a more beautiful village and to help keep
properties clean and neat as per our bylaws. The 2019 Spring Clean Up was welcome, timely and the
community really uses these events to participate. Thank you all.
UBCM
In 2019, we put in an application for a Housing Needs Assessment Grant which will inform our Official
Community Plan. This came out of conversations at UBCM with Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal
Affairs and Housing. This subject was highlighted by the need to find places for our evacuees and the
need for easier access to rentals in the community.
Continuation of Sugarloaf Bridge project
In 2019, the bridge project saw one of its final projects come with the paving and widening of the areas
between the bridges and access from the west side. We also obtained an extension to the grant
timeframe to research where the last of the granted funds will be most useful.
Library and Post Office changes
This council had the foresight to negotiate a License of Occupation with the Postmistress to allow a
mostly unused space (the meeting room behind the library) to bring added revenue to the village and a
continuation of our Postal Service here in Zeballos.
ZFSR Road Users Group meetings
This was an amazing year for the rehab and upkeep of the ZFSR and I would like to think that is due in
part to our continued representation on the Road User Meetings held with Kyuquot, Nuchatlaht,
Ehattesaht, Zeballos and reps from MOTI, MFLNRD, and Western Forest Products. We continuously
advocate for safer FSRs.
Community Meetings
Last year saw a lot of visitors from other communities in consultation and events. Making our needs
known, and keeping our name in the mouths of others is always a good thing to raise the profile of the
community and get those needs met.
As we look forward to 2020, I am, as always, proud of the resilience and community mindedness of this
Village and the Valley we serve. Please know that your Village council and staff work for you and are
available to discuss projects, issues and opportunities that you feel would benefit you and these
communities. You know where the office is, come by or call to set up a time, and feel free to come to
the Village council meetings to see the work in action.
Thank you,

Mayor Julie Colborne
2020 Village of Zeballos Annual Report
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INTRODUCTION TO ZEBALLOS — A TINY PARADISE
Zeballos has an amazing history of gold mining, iron mining and
logging operations. During the gold mining boom of the 1930s and
40s, the community boasted a population of 2,000. Zeballos has
now become the smallest municipality in BC with a current
population of 107.

Figure 1 - Brian's Bluff

Nestled in a deep valley at the head of the Zeballos Inlet, Zeballos is
the jewel of the North West Coast of Vancouver Island. This tiny
paradise is a wonderful place to unplug and reconnect with nature.
Revel in the opportunity to breathe the clean air and taste the
award winning drinking water. The proximity of wildlife, outdoor
recreation, and world famous history make this quiet, restful village
a great place to live and to visit.
Figure 2 - Zeballos Waterfront

Zeballos has historically had a resource-based economic driver.
Times have changed and economic sustainability must be found
elsewhere. Zeballos is increasingly becoming a destination for
travellers who are looking for the excitement of wilderness
recreation and for those wishing to delve into its astounding waters.
Your Village Council and staff are mindful of both the opportunities
and the challenges of living in a rural community. Many
municipalities across BC are suffering as infrastructure fails. Council
is committed to tackling our issues head on in the most fiscally
responsible way possible.

Figure 5 - 2019 Zeballos Village Council
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MUNICIPAL SERVICES & OPERATIONS SUMMARY FOR 2019
The Annual Report is prepared by the Village of Zeballos as required by s. 98 of the Community Charter.
1. Executive
By-Election
In November, Councillor Brawn submitted a
resignation from Council. Council appointed Eileen
Lovestrom as the Chief Election Officer who began
the process for a By-Election to take place in
February of 2020.
Christmas Hamper Program
In December, with a Council Expense surplus and a
generous donation, a Christmas Gift Hamper Program
was created to support households in the
community. The Village prepared six Christmas Gift
Hampers to be distributed to six households by
random draw based on nominations from the
community.
2. Community Services
Zeballos Library
Figure 6 - 2019 Christmas Hamper Draw Box
The Library expanded its roster of volunteer librarians
and has begun the process of rotating older books
out of the library to make space for new books
coming in. The meeting room located on the back of
library was leased as a Canada Post Outlet and
converted to the post office in August.
Zeballos Museum
The Heritage Board hired a part time Museum Host,
Rhonda John, for the summer to manage the day-today operations at the Zeballos Museum. The museum
is a popular tourist attraction in the summertime.
Visitors can be immersed in the extraordinary history
and artifacts of Zeballos.
Figure 7 - Zeballos Museum
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3. Protective Services
Protective Services Manager
In 2019, The Village appointed Mike Atchison as
the Protective Services Manager for the Zeballos
Fire Department. Mike’s expertise in the field
and having been the Fire Chief in the past has
been beneficial to the department.
Gold Valley Main Fire (V_2441) Recovery
In January 2019, the Village contracted Mark
Brown as Recovery Manager to assist in recovery
Figure 8 - ZVFD members at fire practice
efforts and drafting a Recovery Plan for the 2018
Gold Valley Main Fire, and resulting Evacuation
Order for potential debris flow.
The Village lifted the Evacuation Order for the
final five properties on June 1, 2019 enabling
homeowners to re-enter their homes.
West Side Evacuation Site
The Village worked together with the Ehattesaht
Emergency Program to establish an evacuation
site for the west side of Zeballos and Ehatis. The
site has been cleared in preparation for a sea can
to be placed at the location which will store
emergency supplies.
Emergency Preparedness Grant Funding
With grant funding from the Province’s
Community Emergency Preparedness Fund, the
Village purchased six portable Emergency
Operation Centre (EOC) kits. Training sessions
were hosted for Emergency Program volunteers
to learn how to use the kits and how functions
within an EOC operate. These sessions were
attended by volunteers from the Village of
Zeballos and Ehattesaht Chinehkint, Nuchatlaht,
and Ka:’yu:'k't'h'/Che:k'tles7et'h' First Nations.
The Zeballos Emergency Program coordinated
with the Ehattesaht Chinehkint First Nation to
collaborate on training sessions to maximize
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training
opportunities
for
all
four
communities. The portable EOC kits have
allowed us to increase the capacity of our EOC
during an emergency.
4. Public Works Department
East Side Effluent Feasibility Study
With grant funding from the Province’s Gas
Tax Strategic Priorities Fund, the Village was
able to secure Wedler Engineering to
complete a feasibility study for the Figure 11 - STEP Sewer System Drawing
construction of Septic Tank Effluent Pump
(STEP) sewer system for 84 properties on the
east side of the Sugarloaf Bridge. A system
was designed to be able to provide the Village
with consistent, safe delivery of effluent from
residences and businesses within the
municipality to a future treatment and
disposal facility. The outcome of the study
provided the Village with preliminary design
drawings, construction cost estimates and
tender documents for the STEP system.
Sugarloaf Bridge
In 2019, with grant funding from the
Province’s Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund,
paving was completed between the Sugarloaf Figure 12 - Sugarloaf Bridge
Bridge and the Overflow Bridge as part of the
Zeballos River Crossing Bridge Project.
Columbarium
A columbarium was installed at the Zeballos
Cemetery. A generous donation from Alice
Weston brought the purchase of the
columbarium to fruition. The columbarium,
which has 32 niches for cremated remains, is a
welcomed addition to the cemetery. The
Cemetery Bylaw from 1967 was updated and
adopted to include the columbarium as an
interment option.
Figure 13 - Columbarium at the Zeballos Cemetery
2020 Village of Zeballos Annual Report

6
Page 9

Page 10

EMERGENCY SERVICES
STRATEGIES
a) Partner with the Ehattesaht Chinehkint First Nation to
establish an Evacuation Site on the west side of
Zeballos
b) Research and secure Tsunami Warning Siren for the
east side of Zeballos River
Improve signage and plan familiarity

c)

PROGRESS MEASURES
 Evacuation Site being used in drills and practice
 Mobile EOC system procured and volunteers trained

2020

COUNCIL PRIORITIES
& PROGRESS MEASURES

UNSIGHTLY PREMISES BYLAW
STRATEGIES
a) Continue with notification of infractions
b) Fewer letters needing to be sent to unsightly premise
owners

Strategies are this year’s priorities for Village Council.
Progress Measures will be tracked and reported in
next year’s Annual Report.

PROGRESS MEASURES
 Neat and tidy yards

PARKS & TRAILS
STRATEGIES
a) Ongoing engagement with the Community Unity Trail
(CUT) project
b) Secure statutory right-of-way or tenure over CUT
trailhead site within Village of Zeballos
c) Local trails improved to reduce risk to public use
d) Identify rules and regulations surrounding estuary
development, safety and signage
e) Enhance the foreshore park and trail area
f) Develop a strategic plan for ongoing management of
Village trail network
PROGRESS MEASURES
 U4C Society holding regular meetings and designated
representatives reporting to Council
 Trailhead identified and access secured
 Estuary and River trails have a reduced risk and are
widely used
 Foreshore parks are attractive and widely used

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

POLICIES & BYLAWS
STRATEGIES
a) Complete bylaw and policy review
b) Work with the Strathcona Regional District on a service
agreement for a Bylaw Enforcement Officer
PROGRESS MEASURES
 Fewer bylaws in need of housekeeping amendments
 Service Agreement signed with the SRD for bylaw
enforcement

PUBLIC RELATIONS
STRATEGIES
a) Renew Protocol Agreement with Nuchatlaht Tribe
b) C2C Meetings with neighbouring First Nations
PROGRESS MEASURES
 Signed Protocol Agreement in place with the
Nuchatlaht First Nation
 C2C Meetings have occurred

STRATEGIES
a) C2C Meetings with neighbouring First Nations.
b) Complete updated Official Community Plan (OCP).

LOCAL MAINTENANCE & BEAUTIFICATION
STRATEGIES
a) Improve signage for clarity and accuracy
b) Maximize revenue collection from parking fees
c) Address street side debris piles and encourage removal as necessary
d) Village cleanup month of May, including free tipping at landfill. Council to
encourage participation
e) Maintain Village gardens
f) Monitor road allowances which fall under Village of Zeballos responsibility
g) Finalize Sugarloaf Bridge project
PROGRESS MEASURES
 Streets clear of stored materials, derelict vehicles and sundry debris
 Roadways clear of debris and sightlines maintained
 Village properties appear tidy and well kept
 Spring Clean-Up participation
 Parking Attendant and Gardener retained
 Final reporting completed for the Sugarloaf Bridge project

PROGRESS MEASURES
 C2C Meetings have occurred
 OCP Bylaw reconsidered and adopted

FORESHORE
STRATEGIES
a) Feasibility study to mitigate flood hazards identified
in the 2018 report, Zeballos River Floodplain
Modernization & Future Landslide Risk Assessment
b) Foreshore stabilization feasibility study
PROGRESS MEASURES
 Funding received for mitigation feasibility studies and
plan development
 Funding received for implementation

EMERGENCY
SERVICES

PUBLIC
RELATIONS

UNSIGHTLY
PREMISES BYLAW

2020
COUNCIL

POLICIES &
BYLAWS

MAINTENANCE &
BEAUTIFICATION

PRIORITIES

PARKS & TRAILS

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

FORESHORE
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APPENDIX I: ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT AND STATEMENT OF MAJOR PROJECTS
OUTCOMES
Priority
Category
Public
Relations

Priority
Year
2017

2018

ADMINISTRATION

EXECUTIVE

OCP Review

2017

2017

OBJECTIVES/STRATEGIES
C2C Meetings with
neighbouring First Nations.

MEASURES
C2C Meetings have occurred.

Renew Protocol Agreement
with Nuchatlaht Tribe.
Hire Village Office help to free
up Meredith for OCP work

Signed Protocol Agreement in place
with the Nuchatlaht First Nation.
1. part time admin assistant
2. identify local casual help
availability
two partner town halls and survey

Public Engagement (including
feedback on bylaw
enforcement)
Complete updated Official
Community Plan (OCP).
Research Transfer Station and
/ or Industrial Site
requirements and demand

Community
Development
Economic
Stability

2018

Unsightly
Premises
Bylaw

2018

Continue with notification of
infractions

2018

Policies and
Bylaws

2017

Fewer letters needing to be
sent to unsightly premise
owners
Research recommendations
from experts regarding
adoption of Fire Play Book

Local
Maintenance
and
Beautification
(Within
Village Limits)

2018

COMMUNITY SERVICES

2018
Priority Reaffirmed.
Meetings held with
the
Ehattesaht/Chinehkint
First Nation.
Priority Identified.

Priority
Identified.
Completed.
Priority
Identified.

2019
Priority Reaffirmed.
Ongoing.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Completed.

OCP Bylaw reconsidered and
adopted in 2019
1. If necessary, land identified for
industrial site.
2. Action plan in place with specific
steps toward development of
industrial site

Priority Identified.

Neat and tidy yards

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Fire Play Book policy decision made
and adopted by council

Priority Identified.

Priority
Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.
Ongoing.

Completed.

2018

Gather additional data for
input into the Asset
Management Plan

Funding in place to account for
capacity shortfall regarding asset
management plan development

Priority Identified.
Completed.

2018

Complete bylaw and policy
review

Fewer bylaws in need of
housekeeping amendments

Priority Identified.

2019

Work with the Strathcona
Regional District on a service
agreement for a Bylaw
Enforcement Officer
Village properties are well
maintained to a consistent
standard and usage tracked

Service Agreement signed with the
SRD for bylaw enforcement.

Village Office renovation (siding
replacement) - West Side

Completed.

2017

Village properties are well
maintained to a consistent
standard and usage tracked

Village Office renovation (siding
replacement) - North Side

Priority Identified

Completed.

2017

Museum Expansion
(completion of porch and
siding)
Engage CVRD educators to
encourage recycling

Budget item approved

Priority Identified

Budget item approved

Ongoing.

Priority
Identified.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

2017

2017

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.
Priority Identified.

2017

Schedule a hazard waste
pickup and PR opportunity

2018

Improve signage for clarity
and accuracy.

2018

Address street side debris
piles and encourage removal
as necessary

1. Streets clear of stored materials,
derelict vehicles, and sundry debris.
2. Village properties appear tidy and
well kept.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

2018

Maximize revenue collection
from parking fees; Continue
with parking attendant and
patrols.
Village cleanup month of
May, including free tipping at
landfill. Council to encourage
participation.
Monitor road allowances
which fall under Village of
Zeballos responsibility
Maintain Village gardens.

Parking Attendant retained.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Spring Clean-Up participation.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Roadways clear of debris and
sightlines maintained.

Priority Identified.

Ongoing.

Gardener retained.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

2018

2018

2018
2019

2019
Parks & Trails

2017
Priority
Identified.

2017

2017

2017

Monitor road allowances
which fall under Village of
Zeballos responsibility.
Install columbarium at the
Zeballos Cemetery.
CUT Project: Cost of
construction, complete
engineer and design, take to
UBCM
Identify CUT trailhead within
Village of Zeballos
Establish guidelines for OffRoad Vehicle use on Village
roads.
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Priority
Identified.

Priority Identified.

Columbarium installed.

Priority Identified.

request UBCM meeting

Priority
Identified.

Completed.

Trailhead identified and
development needs to appear on
work schedule
Off-Road Vehicle Bylaw Adopted.

Priority
Identified.

Completed.

Priority
Identified.

Meeting with Council
and RCMP

9

Ongoing. Off-Road
Vehicle Bylaw draft
under consideration.
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2018

Ongoing engagement with
the Community Unity Trail
(CUT) project.

U4C Society holding regular meetings
and designated representatives
reporting to Council.

2019

Secure statutory right-of-way
or tenure over CUT trailhead
site within Village of Zeballos.

Trailhead identified and access
secured.

2017

PW continue to maintain
existing trails
Pursue grants for engineering
and design of improvements
to existing trails

budget line item approved

Accept Canadian Rangers
commitment to assist with
trail maintenance
Local trails need
improvements to reduce risk
to public use.

Invite to Council meeting

Estuary and River trails have a
reduced risk and are widely used.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. "use at own
risk signs" placed at
trailheads. Ongoing.

Identify rules and regulations
surrounding estuary
development, safety and
signage.
Develop a strategic plan for
ongoing management of
Village trail network.
Enhance the foreshore park
and trail area.
Continued communications
with all levels of RCMP

Estuary and River trails have a
reduced risk and are widely used.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Foreshore parks are attractive and
widely used.
Annual Meetings with RCMP Staff
Sargent

Priority
Identified.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Increased Presence in
Visibility As Well As
Availability
Signage at east side
evacuation site
Improve strategy to inform
residents of emergencies
underway
Improve strategy to inform
residents of emergencies
underway

Monitor stats as per RCMP quarterly
reports

Priority
Identified.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

signs mounted

Priority
Identified.
Priority
Identified.

Completed.

Priority
Identified.

Meetings held with
the Emergency
Programs in Zeballos,
Ehatis, and Oclucje.
Joint training and
emergency evacuation
exercises completed.

Priority
Identified.
Priority
Identified.

Completed.

Priority
Identified.

Completed.

Priority
Identified.

Grant funding
application not
approved.

2017

2017

2018

2018

2019

2019
Policing

2017

2017

Emergency
Preparedness

2017
2017

2017

2017
2017

PROTECTIVE SERVICES

2017

2017

2018

Develop Evacuation Site for
the west side of Zeballos Area

2018

Contact Lands Department
for Crown Grant for west
evacuation site
Include budget funds for
survey work and land clearing

2018

PUBLIC WORKS

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.
Priority Identified.

Priority
Identified.
Priority
Identified.

Ongoing.

Priority
Identified.

No longer a priority.

Completed.

Completed.

Priority Identified.

ESS attaining ham radio certification

Joint Emergency Committee
meetings (VoZ, SRD, ECFN & NFN)

Funding secured for new siren.

1. Village property used for
installation
2. Siren functioning to full capacity

Priority Identified.

Completed.

Discussed at UBCM
meeting.

Crown Lease in place with surveyed
site

Priority Identified.

Priority Identified.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

No longer a priority.
Replaced by slope
hazard mitigation
strategy.
Partnership with the
Ehattesaht
Chinehkint First
Nation established
and revised strategy
adopted in 2019.
Strategy revised. This
task no longer
applicable.
Strategy revised. This
task no longer
applicable.
Partnership with the
Ehattesaht
Chinehkint First
Nation established
and revised strategy
adopted in 2019.
Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Partner with the Ehattesaht
Chinehkint First Nation to
establish an Evacuation Site
on the west side of Zeballos .

2018

Improve signage and
Emergency Plan familiarity

2019

Secure funding for mitigation
feasibility study for the east
side slope hazard.
Procure a mobile EOC system
and train volunteers to
administer it.
Investigate replacement of
seaplane dock or other
options

Funding secured for a mitigation
feasibility study.

Priority Identified.

Mobile EOC system procured and
volunteers trained.

Priority Identified.

1. Gather budget info
2. investigate bulkhead to identify
extent of required repair

Priority
Identified.

Negotiate MOU with all
waterfront users

1. Invite all users for negotiation
meeting in 2018
2. MOU agreement in place

Priority
Identified.

2017

2017

2020 Village of Zeballos Annual Report

Evacuation Site being used in drills
and practice

Ongoing.

2019

2019

Foreshore

Connect Rocket training and
implementation
Research and secure Tsunami
Warning Siren for the east
side of Zeballos River
Provide labour and financial
support for a pole to install
the Ehattesaht/ Chinehkint
First Nation's new siren
Complete Zeb Creek Flooding
Mitigation

Risk assessment completed.

Priority Identified.

Priority Identified.
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2018

Feasibility study to mitigate
flood hazards identified in the
2018 report, Zeballos River
Floodplain Modernization &
Future Landslide Risk
Assessment.
Foreshore stabilization
feasibility study.

Funding received for mitigation
feasibility studies and plan
development.

Pursue Pot Hole and Sink Hole
Repair along all roadways
working with the various
jurisdictions: Forestry,
Highways, Emcon, Village PW
Encourage Road User Group new format, more meetings
and cooperation

monitor effectiveness of
communications ie # of trouble spots
increasing? Or decreasing?

Priority
Identified.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

1. RUG Meetings held
2. Road User Agreement updated in
2018

Priority
Identified.

Road User Group
meetings held and FSR
improvement projects
funded.

Ongoing.

2018

Finalize Sugarloaf Bridge
project and related paving.

Sugarloaf Bridge project completed.

Priority Identified.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

2017

Research cost of lift station 2
improvements and funding
opportunities

Budget Item Approval

Priority
Identified.

Budget item approved

2017

West Side Sewer Expansion
Project

continue meeting with ECFN and
staff

Priority
Identified.

Ongoing.

2017

Continue to work towards a
step sewer system for East
Zeballos
Feasibility study for East Side
Sewer project

Secure Funding for feasibility study

Priority
Identified.

Meetings held and
VoZ staff continue to
be engaged in the
process.
Completed.

Priority Identified.
Preliminary research
completed.

Ongoing.

2019
Roads and
Bridges

2017

2017

Sewer
Services

2018

2020 Village of Zeballos Annual Report

Priority Identified.

Funding received for study and
implementation.

Priority reaffirmed in
2019. Ongoing.

Priority Identified.

Feasibility study completed for East
Side Sewer project

11
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APPENDIX II: SCHEDULES OF PAYMENTS AND PERMISSIVE EXEMPTIONS
2019 Schedule of Board Remuneration
Remuneration

Expenses

Total

Mayor Julie Colborne

4,774.00

2,638.83

7,412.83

Councillor Candace Faulkner

1,591.00

603.56

2,194.56

Councillor Justin Janisse

3,182.00

1,018.00

4,200.00

Councillor Barb Lewis

3,182.00

2,329.22

5,511.22

Councillor Paul Brawn

1,591.00

532.40

2,123.40

$ 14,320.00

$ 7,122.01

$ 21,442.01

Totals

2019 Schedule of Payments to Suppliers
Annual Payment Greater than $25,000
Holistic Emergency Preparedness and Response

26,002.68

Municipal Insurance Association of BC

29,450.00

BC Hydro

42,777.16

Mark D. Brown

43,873.63

OK Paving Company

47,481.00

ISL Engineering

59,136.93

BGC Engineering

99,226.77

All Other Consolidated
Total Payments to Suppliers

300,796.66
$ 648,744.83

2019 Permissive Exemptions
The Village of Zeballos did not have any permissive exemptions in 2019.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Mayor and Councilors of the Village of Zeballos
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Village of Zeballos which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2019, and the Statements Operations,
Changes in Net Financial Assets, and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
In our opinion, the Village of Zeballos financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Village of Zeballos as at December 31, 2019 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally-accepted auditing standards.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Village of Zeballos in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Village of
Zeballos’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Village of Zeballos, or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Village of Zeballos's financial
reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally-accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally-accepted auditing standards we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. But not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Zeballos’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Village of
Zeballos’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However future events or conditions may cause the Village
of Zeballos to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
July 28, 2020
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Village of Zeballos

Statement of Financial Position
December 31

2019

Financial Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (Note 1)
Investments (Note 2)
Taxes and user fees receivable

$

153,434
257,864
853,991
52,666

2018

$

124,048
193,898
691,116
43,686

1,317,955

1,052,748

59,689
157,718

60,755
178,993

217,407

239,748

Net Financial Assets

1,100,548

813,000

Non-Financial Assets
Prepaid expenses
Tangible capital assets (Note 4)

29,511
6,040,457

20,977
6,100,180

6,069,968

6,121,157

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue (Note 3)

Accumulated Surplus (Note 5)

$ 7,170,516

$

6,934,157

Contingent Liabilities (Note 6)
Contractual Rights (Note 13)
Subsequent Event (Note 15)

Treasurer

Mayor

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Village of Zeballos

Statement of Operations
Budget
2019
(Note 12)

For the year ended December 31

Revenue (Schedule 2 and 3)
Taxation - net (Note 7)
$
Government grants - Provincial (Schedule 1)
Sales of services
Amortized contribution of
tangible capital asset
Interest and other
Water utility charges
Sewer utility charges

Expenses (Schedule 2 and 3)
General government services
Interest and bank charges
Water system operations
Sewer system operations

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

$

$

185,499
769,119
120,276

2018

$

181,949
815,450
103,724

11,350
28,500
12,650

26,789
19,390
28,979
14,601

26,789
18,468
27,592
12,469

953,456

1,164,653

1,186,441

931,459
3,000
29,650
59,720

841,108
3,653
37,703
45,830

1,007,926
3,136
44,600
37,874

1,023,829

928,294

1,093,536

236,359

92,905

6,934,157

6,934,157

6,841,252

6,863,784

$ 7,170,516

(70,373)

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated Surplus, end of year

192,763
620,568
87,625

2019

$

6,934,157

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Village of Zeballos

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
Budget
2019
(Note 12)

For the year ended December 31

Annual surplus (Deficit)

$

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Acquisition of prepaid expenses
Use of prepaid expenses

Change in net financial assets for the year
Net financial assets, beginning of year
Net financial assets, end of year

$

2019

(70,373) $

236,359

2018

$

92,905

(293,500)
-

(170,279)
230,002

(87,113)
243,766

(293,500)

59,723

156,653

-

(29,511)
20,977

(20,977)
4,064

-

(8,534)

(16,913)

(363,873)

287,548

232,645

813,000

813,000

580,355

449,127

$ 1,100,548

$

813,000

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Village of Zeballos

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31

2019

2018

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets

$

Changes in non-cash operating balances
Accounts and taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue

$

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year
Cash, beginning of year
$

92,905

230,002

243,766

466,361

336,671

(72,946)
(8,534)
(1,066)
(21,275)

Investing activities
Purchase of tangible capital assets
Purchase of investments

Cash, end of year

236,359

(66,910)
(16,913)
2,861
(173,380)

362,540

82,329

(170,279)
(162,875)

(87,113)
(12,804)

(333,154)

(99,917)

29,386

(17,588)

124,048

141,636

153,434

$

124,048

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Village of Zeballos

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2019

The Village of Zeballos (the "Village") is a municipality in the Province of British Columbia and
operates under the provisions of the Community Charter. The Village provides municipal
services such as fire, public works, planning, parks, recreation and other general government
services for its tax payers and some services to neighbouring communities. The Village prepares
its financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
("PSAS").
Significant Accounting Policies
Investments

Investments are comprised entirely of Municipal Finance Authority
("MFA") pooled investments. The investments are carried at market
value which approximates cost.

Tangible Capital Assets Tangible
capital
assets
are
recorded
at
cost
less
accumulated amortization. Cost includes all costs directly attributable
to acquisition or construction of the tangible capital asset including
transportation costs, installation costs, design and engineering fees,
legal fees and site preparation costs. Amortization is recorded on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the tangible capital
asset commencing once the asset is put into use. Donated tangible
capital assets are recorded at fair value at the time of the donation.
Estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets are as follows:
Buildings
Fixtures, furniture, equipment and vehicles
Fire truck
Roads and bridges
Water infrastructure
Sewer infrastructure
Parks and land improvements
Collection of Taxes
on Behalf of Other
Taxation Authorities

10 to 50 years
5 to 20 years
30 years
10 to 100 years
10 to 100 years
10 to 100 years
10 to 100 years

The Village collects taxation revenue on behalf of other entities. Such
levies, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to
the operations of entities are not reflected in these financial
statements. Levies imposed by other taxing authorities are not
included as taxes for municipal purposes. Levies imposed by
Strathcona Regional District for services and general administrative
services and other taxing authorities are not included.
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Village of Zeballos

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2019

Revenue Recognition

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they meet the
definition of an asset, have been authorized and the taxable event
occurs. Taxes receivable are recognized net of allowance for
anticipated uncollectible amounts.
Through the British Columbia Assessment's appeal process, taxes may
be adjusted by way of supplementary roll adjustments. The affects of
these adjustments on taxes are recognized at the time they are
awarded.
Charges for sewer and water usage are recorded as user fees when
services are delivered. Connection fee revenues are recognized when
the connection has been established.
Government transfers, which include legislative grants, are recognized
in the financial statements when received if the transfer is authorized
and any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer
stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a
liability. Transfers are recognized as unearned revenue when transfer
stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in
the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.
Sales of service and other revenue is recognized on an accrual basis as
earned.

Unearned Revenue

Revenues from the sale of business licenses, dog tags and rental
revenues pertaining to the subsequent year have been deferred. These
amounts will be recognized as revenue in the next fiscal year.
Contributions of assets in exchange for future services are deferred
and recognized over the term of the service contract.

Trust Funds

Trust funds held by the Village, and their related operations, are not
included in these financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PSAS
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
management's best estimates as additional information becomes
available in the future. Areas requiring the greatest degree of
estimation include useful lives of tangible capital assets and the
collectability of accounts & taxes receivables .
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Village of Zeballos

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2019

Contaminated Sites

Governments are required to accrue a liability for the costs to
remediate a contaminated site. Liabilities are recognized when an
environmental standard exists, contamination exceeds the standard,
the government has responsibility for remediation, future economic
benefits will be given up and a reasonable estimate can be made.
Management has assessed its potential liabilities including sites that
are no longer in productive use and sites for which the Village accepts
responsibility. There were no such sites that had contamination in
excess of an environmental standard which required remediation at
this time, therefore no liability was recognized as at December 31,
2019 or December 31, 2018.
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

1.

Accounts Receivable
2019
Government remittances receivable
Trade receivable
Grants receivable

2.

2018

$

10,826
6,937
240,101

$

13,764
6,065
174,069

$

257,864

$

193,898

Investments
The Village's investments balance is held in the MFA's Money Market Fund (the "Fund"). The
Fund's one-year yield as at December 31, 2019 was 1.86% (2018 - 1.65%), and investments
within it are redeemable at any time.
The Fund's guidelines require it to be comprised of investments in high quality Canadiandollar denominated money market instruments including debt issued or guaranteed by the
Government of Canada, any Canadian province or any agency of either, or any municipal
corporation in Canada, obligations of Canadian chartered banks or trust companies, and
high quality short-term corporate obligations. The maximum term of each investment at
time of investment is 366 days, and the weighted average maturity of the Fund's portfolio
may not exceed 90 days.
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

3.

Unearned Revenue
Included in unearned revenue are amounts related to:
2019
Fire protection agreement (a)
Columbarium contribution (b)
Other

2018

$

133,943
10,000
13,775

$

160,732
10,000
8,261

$

157,718

$

178,993

2019
Opening balance of unspent funds
Add: Amount received during the year
Less:
Amount spent on eligible projects - Unity Trail
Amortization of deferred fire protection agreement
Province of BC - Sugarloaf Bridge
Change from other unearned revenue

$

Closing balance of unspent funds

$

178,993
-

2018
$

(26,789)
5,514
157,718

352,373
10,000
(28,343)
(26,789)
(125,000)
(3,248)

$

178,993

(a) The Village received a contribution of a fire truck with an estimated fair value of
$267,886 from Ehatis Reserve during 2014. In exchange for the contribution, the
Village has committed to provide fire protection services, maintain the fire truck and
provide a 50% reduction of annual fire service fee to Ehatis Reserve for each of the
next 10 years (2015 - 2024) as the consideration of the capital contribution. The fair
value is being amortized to revenue over the term of the service agreement.
(b) The Village received a donation for the construction of a columbarium during 2018.
Amortization of the columbarium asset and these contributions will occur over the 50
year estimated useful life of the columbarium, starting in 2021.
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

4.

Tangible Capital Assets
Land

Cost, beginning of year

$

342,442 $ 1,460,764 $

Additions
Cost, end of year
Accumulated amortization,
beginning of year
Amortization
Accumulated amortization,
end of year
Net carrying amount,
end of year

$

Buildings

Fixture, Furniture
and Vehicles

Roads and
Bridges

789,658 $ 3,912,409 $

Parks and Land
Improvements
612,227 $

Water
Infrastructure
985,975 $

Sewer
Infrastructure

2019
Total

1,037,070 $ 9,140,545 $

2018
Total
9,053,432

15,803

6,313

148,163

-

-

-

170,279

87,113

342,442

1,476,567

795,971

4,060,572

612,227

985,975

1,037,070

9,310,824

9,140,545

-

594,113

346,551

916,503

340,467

361,655

481,076

3,040,365

2,796,599

-

46,584

34,236

86,135

20,223

22,083

20,741

230,002

243,766

-

640,697

380,787

1,002,638

360,690

383,738

501,817

3,270,367

3,040,365

835,870 $

415,184 $ 3,057,934 $

251,537 $

602,237 $

535,253 $ 6,040,457 $

342,442 $

6,100,180
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

5.

Accumulated Surplus
The Village segregates its accumulated surplus in the following categories:
2019
Statutory Reserve - Capital Works, Machinery
and Equipment Depreciation Reserve (a)
Economic Development Reserve
Future Expenditures Reserves
Gas Tax Agreement - Community Works
Investment in Non-Financial Assets (b)
Unrestricted

$

2018

41,854
56,192
126,710
355,977
6,069,968
519,815

$

41,106
55,188
124,446
234,677
6,121,157
357,583

$ 7,170,516

$

6,934,157

(a) The Capital Works, Machinery and Equipment Depreciation Reserve was established by
Bylaw #114, in 1975 for the purpose of setting aside funds on an annual basis to
purchase machinery and equipment.
(b) The investment in non-financial assets represents amounts already spent and invested
in infrastructure and other non-financial assets.
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

6.

Contingent Liabilities
(a) The Village is responsible as a member of the Strathcona Regional District for its share
of any operating deficits or long-term debt related to functions in which it
participates. Management has assessed the risks as unlikely at this time therefore no
provision has been recorded in the financial statements.
(b) The Village is partially self-insured through the Municipal Insurance Association of
British Columbia. Should the Association pay out claims in excess of premiums
received, it is possible that the Village along with the other participants, would be
required to contribute towards the deficit.

7.

Taxation - Net
Budget
2019
General municipal purposes
$
Collections for other governments
Province of BC - school tax
Comox Strathcona Regional Hospital District
Police taxes levied
Strathcona Regional District
BC Assessment Authority
Vancouver Island Regional Library
Comox Valley Regional District Solid Waste

Transfers
Province of BC - school tax
Comox Strathcona Regional Hospital District
Police taxes levied
Strathcona Regional District
BC Assessment Authority
Vancouver Island Regional Library
Comox Valley Regional District Solid Waste

Available for general municipal purposes

$

192,763

Actual
2019
$

194,339 $

Actual
2018
182,059

36,809
8,227
5,324
3,802
588
4,115
2,783

37,034
8,266
5,349
3,820
590
4,135
2,795

51,163
9,440
5,366
3,775
640
4,444
2,201

254,411

256,328

259,088

36,809
8,227
5,324
3,802
588
4,115
2,783

45,902
8,227
5,324
3,802
585
4,116
2,873

51,163
9,440
5,366
3,886
638
4,444
2,202

61,648

70,829

77,139

192,763

$

185,499 $

181,949
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

8.

Pension Plan
The Village and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed
pension plan). The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of
benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits
are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2018, the plan had approximately 205,000
active members and approximately 101,000 retired members. Active members include
approximately 40,000 contributors from local governments.
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of
the plan and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined
employer and member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary's calculated
contribution rate is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the longterm rate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average
future entrants to the plan. The rate may be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial
funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial
liability.
The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31,
2018, indicates a $2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going
concern basis.
The Village paid $20,319 (2018 - $23,469) for employer contributions to the plan in fiscal
2019.
The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021 with results available in 2022.
Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of
employer contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan
accounting). This is because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the
plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation,
assets and cost to individual employers participating in the plan.

9.

Funds Held in Trust
At December 31, 2019, the Village held $495 (2018 - $480) in trust as a Cemetary Care Fund
in accordance with the Cremation, Interment and Funeral Services Act of British Columbia
and the Village's bylaws. These funds are not included in these financial statements.
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Village of Zeballos

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

10. Segmented Information
The Village is a diversified
services to its citizens
Distinguishable functional
information. The nature of

municipal government institution that provides a wide range of
such as recreation, fire, sewer, water and solid waste.
segments have been separately disclosed in the segmented
the segments and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government Administration and Other
This segment relates to the revenues and expenses of the Village's operations that cannot
be directly attributed to any other service area, and notably include general
administrative, legislative, and fiscal services.
Protective Services
Protection Services is comprised of fire protection services, building inspection, bylaw
enforcement and emergency services. The fire department is responsible to provide fire
suppression service, fire prevention programs, training and education. The members of the
fire department consist of volunteers.
Transportation Services
Transportation services is comprised of the maintenance of roads, bridges, outdoor
lighting, storm drains and mechanical services and Public Works buildings.
Environmental Health
Environmental health services is comprised of solid waste collection.
Recreation and Cultural
Recreation and culture services includes transactions attributable to the operation of the
local library, which is a service provided in concert with the Vancouver Island Regional
Library.
Water Services
Water services involves distribution of water to residents.
Sewer Services
Sewer services involves the collection and treatment of sewage and waste water by
maintaining and operating pipes, manholes, culverts and treatment facilities.
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11. Expenses by Object
Operations

Capital
Acquisitions

2019
Total

Goods and services
Labour
Debt charges - interest
Grants
Amortization expense

$ 429,868
262,308
6,116
230,002

$ 170,279 $ 600,147
262,308
6,116
230,002

Total Expenses

$ 928,294

$ 170,279 $1,098,573

Operations

Capital
Acquisitions

2018
Total

Goods and services
Labour
Debt charges - interest
Grants
Amortization expense

$

502,472
285,207
3,136
58,955
243,766

$

87,113 $
-

589,585
285,207
3,136
58,955
243,766

Total Expenses

$ 1,093,536

$

87,113 $ 1,180,649

12. Budget
Budget amounts represent the financial Plan By-Law adopted by Council on May 3, 2019.
The budget anticipated use of surpluses accumulated in previous years to balance against
current year expenditures in excess of current year revenues. In addition, the budget
anticipated capital expenditures rather than amortization expense. The following
reconciliation of the "Deficit for the year" is provided to show which items must be added
or removed to reflect the financial plan.
2019
Financial Plan (Budget) Bylaw surplus/deficit for the year
Add:
Capital expenditures
Contribution to Reserves
Less:
Budgeted transfers to accumulated surplus
Amortization

$

Deficit for the year presented in PSAS financial statements

$

293,500
3,629
(137,500)
(230,002)
(70,373)
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13. Contractual Rights
The Village has entered into various agreements with parties for their use of real property
owned by the Village. From these agreements, the Village is entitled to receive
approximately $45,000 between January 1, 2020 and May 31, 2021.

14. Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
financial statement presentation.

15. Subsequent Event
Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the global health crisis known as 'COVID-19' was
declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization and its impact on the global and
Canadian economies increased significantly. The Village has continued to provide essential
services throughout the subsequent period. Although the disruption from this health crisis
is thought to be temporary, the actual duration of disruption and the related financial
impact on the Village cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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Schedule 1 - Government Grants to the Village and Ratepayers
Budget
2019

For the year ended December 31

2019

2018

Province of British Columbia
General operating fund
Small Communities Protection
Gas Tax Agreement - Strategic Priorities
- Bridge Replacement
Gas Tax Agreement - Community Works
Emergency Program Act Recoveries
Emergency Operation Centres
Other
Gas Tax Agreement - Strategic Priorities
Grants in lieu of taxes
Emergency Social Services
Unity Trail
Floodplain Mapping
Asset Management Plan

$

329,385

$

86,000
60,000
25,000
83,400
31,000
5,783
$

620,568

332,772

$

148,163
120,277
106,577
30,432
11,920
9,983
5,306
3,689
$

769,119

316,802
170,335
60,648
12,116
21,826
10,634
4,035
5,601
20,344
41,661
149,748
1,700

$

815,450
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Village of Zeballos

Schedule 2 - Combined Statement of Operations by Segment
For the year ended December 31, 2019

General
Government
Administration

Revenues
General taxes, net
Utility charges
Government grants - Provincial
Amortization of contribution
of tangible capital asset
Sales of services
Interest and other

$

Expenses
Operating
Goods and services
Labour
Interest and bank charges
Amortization

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

$

185,499
492,476

Protective
Services

$

106,577

Transportation
Services

$

158,146

Environmental
Health
Services

$

-

Recreation
and Cultural
Services

$

11,920

Water
Utility

$

28,979
-

Total
2019
Actual

Sewer
Utility

$

14,601
-

$

185,499
43,580
769,119

2019
Budget

$

192,763
41,150
620,568

64,014
19,390

26,789
912
-

11,496
-

25,591
-

18,263
-

-

-

26,789
120,276
19,390

87,625
11,350

761,379

134,278

169,642

25,591

30,183

28,979

14,601

1,164,653

953,456

157,223
139,076
6,116
60,453

154,117
448
13,341

45,273
81,274
86,135

7,122
19,388
7,026

35,042
12,504
20,223

10,811
4,809
22,083

20,280
4,809
20,741

429,868
262,308
6,116
230,002

504,627
286,200
3,000
230,002

362,868

167,906

212,682

33,536

67,769

37,703

45,830

928,294

1,023,829

398,511

$

(33,628)

$

(43,040)

$

(7,945)

$

(37,586)

$

(8,724)

$

(31,229)

$

236,359

$

(70,373)
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Village of Zeballos

Schedule 3 - Combined Statement of Operations by Segment
For the year ended December 31, 2018

General
Government
Administration
Revenues
$
General taxes, net
Utility charges and user rates
Government grants - Federal
Government grants - Provincial
Amortization of contribution
of tangible capital asset
Sales of services
Interest and other

Expenses
Operating
Goods and services
Labour
Interest and bank charges
Grants (Note 4)
Amortization

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

$

181,949
747,365

Protective
Services

$

12,116

Transportation
Services

$

45,335

Environmental
Health
Services

$

-

Recreation
and Cultural
Services

$

10,634

Water
Utility

$

27,592
-

Total
2018
Actual

Sewer
Utility

$

12,469
-

$

181,949
40,061
815,450

Total
2018
Budget

$

182,050
34,878
1,235,144

56,751
18,468

26,789
1,883
-

6,836
-

25,743
-

12,511
-

-

-

26,789
103,724
18,468

90,841
9,522

1,004,533

40,788

52,171

25,743

23,145

27,592

12,469

1,186,441

1,552,435

297,331
179,009
3,136
58,955
63,279

44,012
2,365
13,576

82,390
65,566
96,838

8,888
19,425
7,026

38,393
10,650
20,223

18,421
4,096
22,083

13,037
4,096
20,741

502,472
285,207
3,136
58,955
243,766

659,970
308,200
3,000
243,766

601,710

59,953

244,794

35,339

69,266

44,600

37,874

1,093,536

1,214,936

402,823

$

(19,165)

$

(192,623)

$

(9,596)

$

(46,121)

$

(17,008)

$

(25,405)

$

92,905

$

337,499
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VILLAGE OF ZEBALLOS

MINUTES for the Regular Meeting of Council held July 28th, 2020 at 7:00 pm at the
Community Hall, 161 Maquinna Avenue, Zeballos.
PRESENT: Council: Mayor Colborne, Councillors Janisse, Lewis and Smith
Staff: CAO Meredith Starkey
ABSENT:

Councillor Faulkner

The Mayor acknowledged that we are on unceded First Nations land of
Ehattesaht Chinehkint territory.
1.

CALL TO ORDER AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Following approval of the Agenda, Mayor Colborne called the meeting to
order at 7:05 pm.

2.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a) Minutes of the Regular Council meeting, June 23rd, 2020.
123-20
Lewis/Smith
CARRIED
THAT the Minutes of the Regular Council meeting, June 23rd, 2020 be
accepted.

3.

Regular June
23rd

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES (unfinished business)
a) Anti-Racial Discrimination and Anti-Racism Policy
124-20
Lewis/Smith
CARRIED
THAT the Village of Zeballos Anti-Racial Discrimination and Anti-Racism
Policy be adopted.

4.

DELEGATIONS & PETITIONS

5.

CORRESPONDENCE
a) Correspondence from Eileen Lovestrom, re: Parking on Reno St
125-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT the correspondence from Eileen Lovestrom, re: Parking on Reno St
be received.
b)

Anti-Racism
Policy

Reno Parking

Correspondence from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing,
re: 2020 UBCM Meeting requests with Premier Horgan and the
Provincial Cabinet Ministers, and the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing

126-20

Janisse/Lewis

CARRIED
26
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THAT the correspondence from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, re: 2020 UBCM Meeting requests with Premier Horgan and the
Provincial Cabinet Ministers, and the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing be received.
c)

Correspondence from the Association of Vancouver Island Coastal
Communities (AVICC) , re: 2020 Virtual AGM, UBCM Resolutions
Process

127-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT the correspondence from the Association of Vancouver Island
Coastal Communities (AVICC) , re: 2020 Virtual AGM, UBCM Resolutions
Process be received.
d)

Bill 19

Correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 CEPF: Emergency Support
Services Grant Approval

131-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT the correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 CEPF: Emergency
Support Services Grant Approval be received.
h)

Zeballos
Broadband Plan

Correspondence from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
and Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General, re: COVID-19
Related Measures Act (Bill 19)

130-20
Lewis/Smith
CARRIED
THAT the correspondence from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing and Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General, re: COVID-19
Related Measures Act (Bill 19) be received.
g)

UBCM Breakfast
Series

Correspondence from Strathcona Regional District, re: Zeballos
Community Broadband Plan

129-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT the correspondence from Strathcona Regional District, re: Zeballos
Community Broadband Plan be received.
f)

AVICC AGM

Correspondence from C3 Alliance Corp, re: Invitation to UBCM
Annual Resource Breakfast Series

128-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT the correspondence from C3 Alliance Corp, re: Invitation to UBCM
Annual Resource Breakfast Series be received.
e)

MAH UBCM
Meeting
Requests

ESS Grant

Correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 CEPF: Emergency
Operations Centre Grant Approval

132-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 CEPF: Emergency

EOC Grant
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Operations Centre Grant Approval be received.
i)

Correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 CEPF: Flood Risk
Assessment, Flood Plain Mapping and Flood Mitigation Planning
Grant Approval

133-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 CEPF: Flood Risk
Assessment, Flood Plain Mapping and Flood Mitigation Planning Grant
Approval be received.
j)

Correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 Gas Tax - Community Works
Fund Payment

134-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT correspondence from UBCM, re: 2020 Gas Tax - Community
Works Fund Payment be received.
k)

RCMP Strategic
Plan

Correspondence List from June 19th to July 23rd, 2020

138-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
th
rd
THAT the Correspondence List from June 19 to July 23 , 2020 be
received.
o)

Timber Supply
Survey

Correspondence from Port McNeill RCMP, re: Strategic Plan

137-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT correspondence from Port McNeill RCMP, re: Strategic Plan be
received.
n)

BC Hydro UBCM
meeting

Correspondence from the Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural
Resource Operations and Rural Development, re: North Island
Timber Supply Review

136-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT correspondence from the Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural
Resource Operations and Rural Development, re: North Island Timber
Supply Review be received.
m)

Gas Tax Grant

Correspondence from BC Hydro, re: BC Hydro Invitation to Meet at
Virtual UBCM

135-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT correspondence from BC Hydro, re: BC Hydro Invitation to Meet at
Virtual UBCM be received.
l)

Flood Mitigation
Grant

Correspondence
List

Correspondence List – COVID-19 Related from June 19th to July
23rd, 2020
28
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139-20
Janisse/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT the Correspondence List – COVID-19 Related from June 19th to
July 23rd, 2020 be received.
6.

POSSIBILITIES
(items brought forward by Council from the miscellaneous
correspondence)

7.

REPORTS
a) Mayor and Council
Mayor Colborne – written report
140-20
Lewis/Janisse
THAT Mayor Colborne’s written report be accepted.
b)

CARRIED

CARRIED

142-20
Lewis/Smith
CARRIED
THAT staff schedule a Special Meeting of Council for Tuesday, August
11th at 6:30 pm to approve the 2020 Annual Report on 2019 activity.

8.

BYLAWS

9.

ADDITIONAL ITEMS (not included in Agenda at the time of production)
144-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT the agenda be amended to include item 9. a) Councillor Janisse –
Verbal report.

Special Meeting

COW Report
July 14th

Agenda
Amendment

Councillor Janisse – Verbal report

145-20
Smith/Lewis
CARRIED
THAT Councillor Janisse’s verbal report on the Nootka Sound Watershed
Society Slough Clean Up be accepted.
10.

CAO Report

Committee of the Whole Report – July 14th, 2020

143-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
th
THAT the Committee of the Whole Report – July 14 , 2020 be accepted.

a)

Mayor Report

CAO – written report

141-20
Janisse/Lewis
THAT the CAO’s written report be accepted.

c)

COVID-19
Correspondence
List

Councillor
Report

NEW BUSINESS
a) Audit Report and Financial Statements for 2019
146-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT the 2019 Audit Report by Kristine Simpson, BDO Auditor be
received.

Audit Report
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147-20
Lewis/Janisse
THAT the 2019 Audited Financial Statements be approved
b)

CARRIED

2020 Annual Report on 2019 Operations

148-20
Lewis/Janisse
CARRIED
THAT the draft 2020 Annual Report on 2019 Operations be received.
c)

Financial
Statements

Annual Report
Draft

UBCM Meeting Requests

149-20
Lewis/Smith
CARRIED
That the staff report on UBCM Meeting Requests be received.
11.

PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD

12.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 9:26 pm.

UBCM Meeting
Topics

CERTIFIED CORRECT:
________________________
J. Colborne, Mayor

__________________________
M. Starkey, CAO
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Dear the Village of Zeballos Mayor and Council

July 24/2020

I am excited to inform you that Strathcona Regional District, in partnership with the
Ka:’yu:’k’t’h’/Che:k:tles7et’h’ First Nations and Nuchatlaht First Nation are undertaking a highresolution tsunami modelling project for the northwest coast of Vancouver Island from Yuquot /
Muchalaht Inlet to Cape Scott Provincial Park. I would like to thank the Village of Zeballos for
providing a letter of support for our UBCM 2020 Flood Planning grant application, which is
funding this project.
The contract for this project has been awarded to Northwest Hydraulic Consultants in
partnership with Ocean Networks Canada.
To date there are no high-resolution, data-based models for many sites on the northwest coast
of Vancouver Island that are considered highly vulnerable to tsunamis and from both a planning
and impact assessment perspective, this lack of data has limited the ability of public and private
entities to prepare science based tsunami emergency plans. High quality modelling is essential
for accurate understanding of tsunami risk as well as community planning.
Four tsunami scenarios will be modeled:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Cascadia Subduction Zone – present-day sea level rise conditions.
Alaska-Aleutian Subduction Zone – present-day sea level rise conditions.
Cascadia Subduction Zone – extreme year 2100 sea level rise conditions.
Alaska-Aleutian Subduction Zone – extreme year 2100 sea level rise conditions.

Community input, Indigenous knowledge and tsunami modelling will be combined through a
three-step risk assessment process.
What will the Village of Zeballos receive from this project?







Detailed scaled tsunami inundation maps (see example on pages 2-3);
Tsunami vulnerability analysis;
Risk assessment information template;
Evacuation procedure recommendations;
Suggested tsunami mitigation measures; and
Community-specific public education materials.

The Strathcona Regional District will be provided with a digital GIS layer so that tsunami model
is available for the public to access.
I look forward to working on this project with the continued support from the Village of Zeballos.
Sincerely,
Michele Babchuk
Chair – Strathcona Regional District
chair@srd.ca
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Appendix 1: Example of tsunami inundation maps from the District of Tofino
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Appendix 2: List of Project Communities
Project Communities
i. Strathcona Regional District (project coordinator)
ii. Ka:'yu:'k't'h'/Che:k:tles7et'h' First Nation First Nation (project partner)
iii. Nuchatlaht First Nation (project partner)
iv. BC Parks (Including non-provincial parks Grant Bay and Palmerston Bay)
v. Ehattesaht First Nation
vi. Mowachaht / Muchalaht First Nation
vii. Mt. Waddington Regional District
viii. Quatsino First Nation
ix. Village of Gold River
x. Village of Port Alice
xi. Village of Tahsis
xii. Village of Zeballos
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Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing

Local Government Division
PO Box 9838 Stn Prov Govt
800 Johnson St, 6th Floor
Victoria BC V8W 9T1

CIRCULAR

July 24, 2020
To:

All local government clerks and corporate officers

Re:

Ministerial Order 192

As you are aware on June 17, 2020 Ministerial Order 192 (Order) on local government meetings
and bylaw process was signed, repealing and replacing MO139.
The purpose of this circular is to provide an overview of the Order and the implications for local
government operations. We recognize the changes brought about by the Order may require
extra effort from local government staff, in particular clerks and corporate officers as local
governments transition to restart and appreciate and thank you for the work you have done
during this unprecedented time.
The Order transitions local governments back to operating under the normal legislative rules
and requirements, while balancing the health and safety recommendations of the Public Health
Officer (PHO). The Order recognizes that local governments continue to need flexibility with
respect to the rules depending on their local circumstances. The Order and guidance materials
also support the principles of openness, transparency, accountability and accessibility which are
fundamental principles of the local government system.
The main changes in the Order relate to public attendance at open meetings, electronic
meetings, and timing requirements for bylaw passage. We understand that the capacity,
technology and space available to local governments differs across the Province and have
therefore intended the Order to provide flexibility to local governments to decide what will
work best for their community as they reopen.
We encourage local governments to consider what steps they can take to accommodate inperson attendance at open meetings or provide a space where the public can hear the meeting
to understand the local government decision-making process.
Public Hearings
Public hearings are separate from council and board meetings and are addressed accordingly
under Division 5 of the Order. Under the Order, a council, board or local trust committee of the
Islands Trust may conduct a public hearing by electronic or other communication facilities.
These provisions provide local governments another tool to hold public hearings while
complying with the public health orders on mass gatherings and recommendations on physical
distancing.

Page 50

Page 2

It is up to each local government to decide which format of public hearing is best suited to its
circumstances, whether it be electronic, in-person or a combination of both. For more
information about public hearings under the Order please see “Guidance for the conduct of
public hearings under Ministerial Order M192” available at on the Ministry’s website:
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local-governments/governancepowers/covid-19.
Public Attendance at Open Meetings
Under the Order, local governments may decide when they are ready to safely provide inperson public attendance at open meetings. We encourage local governments to consider a
phased approach to making “best efforts” to provide public access to open meetings if needed.
A phased approach may include providing limited public access initially to open meetings,
exploring other meeting venues, and working toward providing added options (e.g.
teleconferences or live streaming) for the public to participate in meetings if in-person
attendance can’t be accommodated.
If, after developing a plan for meetings, a local government is unable to accommodate inperson public attendance, the Order requires the local government to pass a resolution to
provide a rationale for the continued need to meet without the public present. The local
government must also describe what measures are being taken to meet the principles of
openness, transparency, and accessibility. The resolution may apply to one meeting or to
multiple meetings if the same circumstances apply.
Electronic Meetings
The Order continues to make it easier for elected officials to meet through electronic mediums
while allowing local governments to conduct their day-to-day business as they follow physical
distancing guidelines. If a local government meeting is held electronically, we encourage local
governments to explore whether they can provide facilities that enable the public to listen to or
watch and listen to the meeting. This may include exploring another space at the municipal or
board office or another facility where the public could attend to listen to, or watch and listen
to, the meeting using available technology.
We recognize that not all local governments have access to the space or technology to
accommodate the public to listen to or watch and listen to a meeting. The Order provides
flexibility so that local governments can pass a resolution providing the reasons for being
unable to provide a facility the enables the public to listen to or watch and listen to the meeting
if this is the case. The local government must also describe what measures are being taken to
meet the principles of openness, transparency, and accessibility in respect of the meeting.
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Timing Requirements for Bylaw Passage
The Order repeals the authority for expedited bylaw passage which authorized bylaw adoption
in the same day as third reading for regional districts and the Islands Trust and narrows the
eligibility for expedited single-day bylaw adoption to certain financial bylaws for municipalities.
Municipalities can continue to pass certain bylaws, described in the Order, in a single day to
ensure that they are resilient and flexible in a time of economic disruption and fiscal
uncertainty. The changes ensure that council and boards are operating under the principles of
good governance, public process, transparency and accountability.
Conclusion
We appreciate that local governments in B.C. are addressing many competing issues as we
move through this unprecedented time. The Province will continue to work collaboratively with
local governments to ensure the needs of elected officials, local government staff and the
public are balanced.
As COVID-19 is an evolving issue, the Province will continue to monitor the effects of these
measures, consider other measures that may be required and provide updates of actions taken
to support local governments.
Shortly, the ministry will be reaching out to local governments with a survey to understand
their experiences working under the Minister Orders. The information shared back will assist
the ministry in understanding measures needed moving forward. The focus of the survey will be
on:
o How council and board meetings are operating during the pandemic;
o What technology and resources are being utilized for meetings;
o Whether there are procedural issues arising from working under the Order; and
o How they plan to move forward.
If you should have any questions regarding this circular or the Order, I encourage you to contact
our Governance and Structure Branch. You can reach the Governance and Structure Branch by
phone or email at: 250 387-4020 or LGGovernance@gov.bc.ca.
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We sincerely thank local governments for their support and cooperation throughout this
process
Sincerely,

Tara Faganello
Assistant Deputy Minister and Inspector of Municipalities
Local Government Division
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
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Alana Janisse - Village of Zeballos
To:
Subject:

Meredith Starkey
RE: AVICC July 27th Update - AVICC Executive Nomination Report, BC Marine Trails,
Southern Resident Killer Whales Regulations

From: avicc@ubcm.ca [mailto:avicc@ubcm.ca]
Sent: July 27, 2020 10:13 AM
To: AVICC
Subject: AVICC July 27th Update - AVICC Executive Nomination Report, BC Marine Trails, Southern Resident Killer
Whales Regulations

Please forward to elected officials, the CAO and Corporate Officer:
1. Nomination Report
The following members were nominated for a position on the 2020/2021 AVICC Executive by the July 22 nd
deadline.
President – Ian Morrison, Director, Cowichan Valley Regional District (acclaimed)
1st Vice President – Penny Cote, Director, Alberni-Clayoquot Regional District (acclaimed)
2nd Vice President – Hazel Braithwaite, Councillor, District of Oak Bay (acclaimed)
Electoral Area Representative – Vanessa Craig, Director, Regional District of Nanaimo (acclaimed)
Directors at Large (3 to be elected):
 Colleen Evans, Councillor, City of Campbell River
 Sarah Fowler, Councillor, Village of Tahsis
 David Frisch, Councillor, City of Courtenay
 Mark Gisborne, Director, qathet Regional District
 Travis Hall, Director, Central Coast Regional District
 Cindy Solda, Councillor, City of Port Alberni
The President, 1st Vice President, 2nd Vice President and Electoral Area Representative will be elected by
acclamation at the AGM that will be held on Tuesday, September 22 nd from 4:30 to 5:30 pm. There will be an
election for the three available Director at Large positions. Candidate biographies and the times for online
voting will be sent to members along with information on how to vote in September.
Results of the election for the Director at Large positions will be announced during the virtual AVICC AGM.
Members that wish to attend can select the AVICC AGM as an option when registering for the UBCM
Convention, and there is no additional registration fee. Information on matters to be discussed at the AGM will
be sent to members in early September.
2. BC Marine Trails – Code of Conduct – Request for Comment
BC Marine Trails is a member-based organization with a vision that “the entire B.C. coastline is linked through
marine routes and land sites for sustainable water-based public recreation.” The organization has undertaken a
research initiative to understand and evaluate the potential impacts of both sustained and short-term
recreational use of the British Columbia coast. They have developed a proposed Code of Conduct (attached)
that sets out the necessary behaviour from coastal visitors to achieve environmental sustainability and integrity
1
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while visiting the British Columbia coast. AVICC members are encouraged to share the proposed Code of
Conduct with other organizations and to provide their comments to BC Marine Trails by September 1, 2020.
Please send comments to john@bcmarinetrails.org
3. Southern Resident Killer Whale Regulations
The Government of Canada has established 2020 Management Measures to Protect Southern Resident Killer
Whales. Outreach and education products that provide information on this year’s management measures and
increase awareness of the rules are being posted on their website including:





2020 Boating Around Killer Whales poster;
2020 Help Protect Killer Whales brochure;
2020 Gulf Islands Interim Sanctuary Zones postcard;
Endangered Southern Resident Killer Whale sign

2020 Southern Resident Killer Whale management measure videos are available now:
o Vessel approach distance
o Interim Sanctuary Zones
o Fishery measures
During the pandemic, please contact the AVICC office by email at avicc@ubcm.ca

2
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Code of Conduct
Long Form Version
May 7, 2020
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You are on sensitive First Nations traditional land. Treat this land with respect.
Disturb nothing, take nothing.
●
●
●
●

Be aware of the rich cultural and heritage values of this site for First Nations.
Do not disturb any First Nation cultural material encountered.
No harvesting or removal of any animals, plants or inanimate objects (rocks, artifacts, etc.)
Adhere to any First Nations protocols for visitors that may be in effect. Protocols will be
posted at bcmarinetrails.org on the BCMT online map.

Campfires below high tide line only. No upland wood foraging; use driftwood
only. Leave no visual evidence of fires. Adhere to fire bans.
●
●

●

●
●

●

●
●

●

●
●

Always adhere to fire regulations first and foremost, particularly fire bans.
The only ecologically friendly campfire is no campfire at all. A significant negative ecological
impact of campfires is the elimination of woody debris necessary for forest nutrition. Never
scavenge the upland for firewood. Use driftwood if you must have a campfire, or best
practice, forego the campfire.
A campfire may seem beautiful while burning, but the legacy can be fire pits filled with trash,
mounds of charcoal, half-burned logs, tree damage and felled trees cut for firewood. Other
risks are off-site vegetation trampling for wood retrieval, and the threat of forest fires. Best
practice is to enjoy this beautiful location as is and to not have an open fire.
Proper, safe camping stoves used with care are a best practice for food preparation.
Moving rocks to create fire rings has significant potential damage to ecologies and First
Nations values. This type of damage is not always easily apparent. Avoid moving rocks and
never create fire rings.
Fires in the upland camping area will degrade soils and sensitive surfaces as well as the
campsite location overall by creating permanent scars. If you must have a campfire, have it
below the current high tide level so the main impact is washed away.
Never burn drift logs or large chunks of wood. Never leave partially burned debris.
Ensure your campfire is completely extinguished and cold to the touch when you leave or
before you go to sleep. Campfires buried in sand might be walked upon, leading to severe
burns. Cover with water until all heat is gone.
BCMT is advocating burning only driftwood to avoid impacting forests. Site visitors should be
aware this comes with significant personal health risks from smoke toxicity. Best practice is
to forego campfires.
Keep fires small and use small amounts of firewood using pieces of wood generally smaller
than wrist-sized.
BCMT asks you to ensure campfire locations are free of debris and clean when done. If there
is evidence of your fire when you depart, that impact is your legacy. Best practice is to not
have campfires.
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If a toilet is unavailable, no human waste should be left on site. Pack out and
preferably discharge from paddlecraft mid-channel on an ebb tide.
Alternatively, ensure tidal flush sweeps it out to sea. Use tidal flush only in
locations where shellfish won't be contaminated.
[Please note this and other Code elements will be supported by a public education program to be
unveiled as a later phase in this program.]
● Pathogens within human waste pose significant health risks and can survive a year or more.
For this reason, on-site disposal by cat-holes and burying waste on site is not recommended.
● The only way to completely avoid impacting a site through human waste is by packing it out.
This is easily done through commercially available products designed for this purpose. BCMT
urges you to investigate this as an option to avoid grave environmental issues at locations
where toilets are not available and where the site’s use is above its capacity to naturally deal
with the volume of human waste.
● Disposal at sea meets provincial and federal regulations in certain conditions. Collecting
human waste in suitable containers designed for this purpose means potentially harmful
shore impact can be avoided. The marine environment is well suited to manage such waste
in small quantities. Best practice is to dispose of waste mid-channel or open ocean on an ebb
tide so waste is washed out to sea.
● If you are adverse to the best practice of packing out waste, use the intertidal area at the
lowest possible tide. Ensure the beach is subject to a good tidal flush -- or pack it out. Ensure
the beach substrate is suitable for disposal -- or pack it out.
● Any digging to dispose of human waste can potentially disturb cultural sites such as First
Nations middens. Best practice to avoid the impact of digging is to pack it out.
● Intertidal disposal of human waste has the potential to contaminate shellfish growing areas.
Ensure no shellfish are in the area or pack it out.
● Many different methods are now commercially available for packing out human waste.
These types of methods represent the strongest outdoor ethic and are strongly
recommended by BCMT. Use plastic-free disposal options when possible.

Stay to the established campsite area and on established trails to avoid
trampling sensitive ecologies.
●
●
●

●

Even low levels of trampling can reduce vegetation height, cover, and biomass. Higher levels
can lead to vegetation loss and significant ecological changes in a location.
Sensitive habitats line the coast, from sand dunes to coastal bluffs, that are sensitive to
trampling and erosion. These should be avoided.
Coastal vegetation is a valuable buffer to protect sensitive ecologies. Removing this buffer
for recreational benefit such as better views can lead to soil erosion and change the
ecological composition as plants are lost or replaced by more resistant species. Do not
denude the coastal buffer of shrubs or other essential natural vegetation that protects the
shore against salt spray. Access sites through designated trails only.
If a site plan is in place, ensure your footprint is limited to designated locations.
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●
●

If no site plan is in place, ensure your footprint is limited only to the extent needed for your
stay.
Ensure site use follows best practices and avoids impacts that will increase a site’s footprint
such as poor toiletry habits, scavenging for firewood or creating trails.

Do not dispose of gray water in freshwater or in the upland. Minimize or
eliminate use of soaps.
●

●
●
●
●
●

Environmental damage from gray water is greatest in a terrestrial environment where
bacteria can flourish. Use the lowest intertidal marine area as best practice for water
disposal and pack out all solids.
Avoid disposing of gray water near streams or lakes.
Biodegradable soap does not biodegrade in water. Use only small amounts or avoid using
when possible.
Instead of soap, a washcloth, water and friction can clean any human.
Hot water, a scrubbing pad or sand/gravel can clean any dish.
Alcohol-based waterless hand sanitizers kill germs without contaminating the environment.

Maintain regulated distances from marine mammals and avoid disturbance to
all other wildlife.
●
●
●

●
●

If you cause an animal to move, you are too close.
Minimize your impact on wildlife; abide by wildlife viewing regulations and guidelines.
Become an expert on them by reading here.
Many marine mammals and birds are sensitive to impacts that are not regulated by
regulations or guidelines. Read the full list of BCMT best practices for species potentially
harmed by close contact to paddlers [here -- link to BCMT species of interest page to be
created].
Keep your campsites and picnic sites animal-wise. [Link to animal-wise resource.]
BCMT assesses all marine trail sites for endangered species in proximity to marine trail sites,
both plant and animal. Be active in these assessments by volunteering to undertake one.
Also, be aware of Site Values that may be imperiled during your visit. Research information
about the sites you are visiting at bcmarinetrails.org before departing.

Leave nothing behind after your visit. Leave a site in its natural state and
modify nothing.
●
●

Pack it in, pack it out. Inspect your campsite and rest areas for trash or spilled foods. Pack
out all trash, leftover food and litter.
The BCMT goal is sites in a natural, unaltered state with the smallest footprint possible to
accommodate its use. If no designated camping area exists, choose a beach or sandbar.
Areas with gravel or small rocks are best.
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●

●
●

Other best locations are durable surfaces such as barren rock, barren trampling-resistant
substrates such as gravelly or sandy shorelines, or dense shade that supports little vegetative
ground cover.
If users follow this Code of Conduct, the site can remain in a natural, unaltered state into the
future.
Be part of the solution. Follow the Code, and undertake a Site Impact Evaluation on behalf of
BCMT to report back to us on the site’s health.
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Alana Janisse - Village of Zeballos
To:
Subject:

Meredith Starkey
RE: Street light update and workshop invitation

From: lightingsupport=bchydro.com@bchydro.com [mailto:lightingsupport=bchydro.com@bchydro.com] On Behalf Of
BC Hydro
Sent: July 30, 2020 12:00 PM
To: cao@zeballos.com
Subject: Street light update and workshop invitation
Street light updat e and wor ks hop

Register by August 10
Read this email online

Hi Meredith,
We're writing to let you know that later this year we'll be starting work to
replace our street lights across the province with energy-efficient LEDs.
The replacement of street lights is to comply with new federal regulations
that require all light ballasts containing Poly-Chlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)
be removed by the end of 2025.
These new street lights will help improve public safety by increasing the
visibility of sidewalks and roads at night, as well as help reduce light
pollution. LEDs also last longer and require less maintenance.
We'll be reaching out to you in the next few weeks to ask you to select a
preferred colour temperature for your LED street lights. This information
will be used for any street light repairs that may be needed prior to
converting the street lights in your community.
We'll be asking for your detailed light selections closer to when we begin
installation in your area. If you'd like to start this process sooner, contact
us.

Register for the street light engagement session
Later this year, we plan to submit an application to the BC Utilities
Commission to update the current overhead street light rate to better
reflect the costs of this project.
To learn more about the rate change and share your feedback, we invite

1
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you to attend a virtual workshop via WebEx:
Date: Wednesday, August 12
Time: 2 p.m. – 4:30 p.m., PDT
Please register for the workshop and provide the requested information by
Monday, August 10, 2020. If you're unable to attend, the workshop slides
and online feedback form will be posted after the workshop.

Keep up to date with the most recent information about the street light
replacement project. You can also contact us by email or toll free at
1 833 828 2224. We're available Monday to Friday from 8 a.m. to 4 p.m.
Thank you,
BC Hydro street light replacement team

Log in to MyHydro
Outages & Safety
Accounts
Contact Us
Energy Savings
Unsubscribe

You've received this email at cao@zeballos.com because you're our identified key
contact for managing your street light account.
No longer interested? Unsubscribe.
© BC Hydro, 333 Dunsmuir Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6B 5R3 | Privacy Statement
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PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

ORDER OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR IN COUNCIL
Order in Council No.

458

, Approved and Ordered

August 04, 2020

Lieutenant Governor
Executive Council Chambers, Victoria

On the recommendation of the undersigned, the Lieutenant Governor, by and with the advice and consent of the
Executive Council, orders that the attached declaration of a state of emergency throughout the whole of the Province of
British Columbia made by the Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General on March 18, 2020 is extended for a further
period, to the end of the day on August 18, 2020, due to the threat the COVID-19 pandemic poses to the health, safety or
welfare of people.

Presiding Member of the Executive Council

(This part is for administrative purposes only and is not part of the Order.)

Authority under which Order is made:
Act and section:
Other:

Emergency Program Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 111, s. 9 (4)
M073/2020; OIC 155/2020; OIC 173/2020; OIC 207/2020; OIC 241/2020; OIC 264/2020;
OIC 310/2020; OIC 351/2020; OIC 389/2020; OIC 436/2020
Page 1 of 2

O10437833
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PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

ORDER OF THE MINISTER OF PUBLIC
SAFETY AND SOLICITOR GENERAL
Emergency Program Act
Ministerial Order No.

M073

WHEREAS the COVID-19 pandemic poses a significant threat to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of British
Columbia, and threatens to disproportionately impact the most vulnerable segments of society;
AND WHEREAS prompt coordination of action and special regulation of persons or property is required to protect the
health, safety and welfare of the residents of British Columbia, and to mitigate the social and economic impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic on residents, businesses, communities, organizations and institutions throughout the Province of
British Columbia.
NOW THEREFORE I declare that a state of emergency exists throughout the whole of the Province of British Columbia.

March 18, 2020
Date

Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor
General
(This part is for administrative purposes only and is not part of the Order.)

Authority under which Order is made:

Act and section:

Emergency Program Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 111, s. 9(1)

Other:
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Alana Janisse - Village of Zeballos
To:
Subject:

Meredith Starkey
RE: Zeballos Marine project

From: "Adamson, Jennifer" <jadamson@sd61.bc.ca>
Date: August 11, 2020 at 4:06:51 PM PDT
To: "mayor@zeballos.com" <mayor@zeballos.com>
Subject: Zeballos Marine project
Good afternoon Julie,
I don’t know if others remember me. I was the principal at ZESS for several years (Jennifer Auld). I loved
being out on the water in Zeballos and because of this love of the water my husband and I launched our
not for profit, Emerald Sea Society around seven years ago. My husband and our team are commercial
divers and we seek out, retrieve and safely dispose or recycle lost or abandoned fishing gear and marine
debris.
We recently received a grant and are able to remove any debris and gear in our waters now free of
charge. We are wondering if you have areas in the inlet, harbor or Sound that might need some work
done? We are currently gathering local data and creating a map of potential projects. We understand
with Covid we are all operating differently and would only work in the sound with explicit permission
and a co-created plan. I would love to add some Nootka Sound areas. You can look us up on our website
for more details on who we are and what we do.
https://www.emeraldseasociety.ca/
I look forward to hearing from you.
Jen Adamson
Emerald Sea Protection Society
778-678-4213 (cell)

1
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Alana Janisse - Village of Zeballos
To:
Subject:

Meredith Starkey
RE: Letter from Honourable Selina Robinson - UBCM submission Building BC's Recovery
together

From: Minister, MAH MAH:EX [mailto:MAH.Minister@gov.bc.ca]
Sent: August 04, 2020 2:27 PM
To: Undisclosed recipients:
Subject: Letter from Honourable Selina Robinson - UBCM submission Building BC's Recovery together

Good afternoon:
For your information, please find attached a copy of the letter from Minister Selina Robinson and the UBCM submission
that were provided to Premier John Horgan and Finance Minister Carol James on July 31, 2020 as a contribution to the
Province’s economic recovery engagement process.
Thank you

1
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[Date]
Ref: 256384
Honourable Carole James
Minister of Finance
PO Box 1234 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria BC V1A 2BC

Honourable John Horgan
Premier
PO Box 9041 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria BC V8W 9E1
Dear Premier and Minister James:

During the month of July, I held 10 consultation sessions about COVID-19 and economic recovery with
municipal mayors and regional district chairs or their representatives across the province. The sessions
provided an opportunity for local governments to contribute directly to British Columbia’s recovery
conversation. The Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing invited representatives from 189 local
governments including 21 regional districts and 14 resort communities to the conversations. The
discussion and ideas that were generated helped inform this letter and I am pleased to share them with
you.
Overwhelmingly, local government representatives were most concerned about connectivity,
infrastructure, transit and food security. The ministry also heard that people want more than economic
recovery, they want to make things better for everyone and COVID-19 provides the opportunity to do
that as we restart the economy towards recovery.
The consultation sessions were guided by the principles, values and measures outlined in the
government’s discussion paper, Building B.C.’s Recovery, Together. They focused on the importance of
getting people back to work quickly, the value of equity, leaving no one behind, restoring the Province of
British Columbia’s revenue base, supporting climate commitments, and having an immediate and
demonstrable impact on economic recovery.
…/2

Ministry of Municipal Affairs
and Housing

Office of the Minister

Mailing Address:
PO Box 9056 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria BC V8W 9E2
Phone:
250 387-2283
Fax:
250 387-4312

Location:
Room 310
Parliament Buildings
Victoria BC V8V 1X4
http://www.gov.bc.ca/mah
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Honourable John Horgan
Honourable Carole James
Page 2
Local governments put forward a variety of practical, innovative and valuable ideas in the consultation
sessions. The following priority themes (common topics or subject areas for recovery investment) were
identified:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Connectivity/Broadband
Investment in Infrastructure
Transit/Transportation
Agriculture/Food Security
Child Care
Low Wage Workers/Employment
Health Care, Mental Health and Social
Services

•
•
•
•
•
•

Tourism/Recreation
Education/Training
Clean Energy and Technology
Affordable Housing
Industry/Business Development
Reconciliation

These priority themes (described further in Appendix 1) cut across all local governments, independent
of size and location. They also reflect a strong sense of “building back better” – an idea that has been
widely expressed by many who say that with the hard economic impact of COVID-19 comes an
opportunity to diversify, innovate, collaborate and partner to make things better for people and
communities as we work towards economic recovery.
The priority themes and ideas expressed by local government leaders were primarily focused on what
could be done to help various sectors in their communities rather than on the needs of the local
governments themselves. At the same time, the importance of local governments having enough
supports and capacity to restart operations was also noted.
A number of local governments have laid off workers, experienced real revenue losses (e.g. transit, user
fees) and faced significant new costs (e.g. adapting local government facilities and services to a
COVID-19 environment). Some local governments also noted the opportunity to rethink local
government financing to ensure that their financial tools are sufficiently robust and sustainable to meet
the increased and changing demands on local governments and their services.
I would like to take this opportunity to recognize the dedication, hard work and leadership local
governments are providing to their communities, each with unique needs, during a challenging and
ever-evolving time. As B.C. has moved into restart and now recovery planning, local governments have
not only been working hard to get themselves back to full operation in a safe way, they have also been
supporting the businesses, non-profits and other interests in their communities. This includes patio
expansions for restaurants, shop local campaigns, virtual community events, business information tools,
local economic recovery task forces and direct contributions in dedicated time and resources.
…/3
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Honourable John Horgan
Honourable Carole James
Page 3
Most importantly, local governments have been doing this work in collaboration with other local
governments across their regions, First Nation neighbours, all sectors in their communities and the
Province. The commitment to come together in response to the unprecedented COVID-19 emergency
persisted as we worked together to get restarted and now continues in rebuilding together as local
governments work with the Province to plan for recovery.
I appreciate the time that everyone took out of their busy lives to participate in the consultation
sessions and the recommendations they provided from their unique positions on the front lines of the
pandemic.
It gives me great pleasure to provide this input from my calls with local government leaders to the
economic recovery engagement process. I expect that some local governments will also be submitting
ideas into that process directly. The Union of BC Municipalities has also prepared a letter for submission
and I am very pleased to include it here.
Sincerely,

Selina Robinson
Minister
pc:

Her Worship Mayor Maja Tait, President, Union of BC Municipalities
Local Governments in British Columbia
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Appendix 1 – Description of Priority Themes
Connectivity/Broadband
Digital connectivity is the number one opportunity that emerged in almost every engagement session,
especially for rural and remote communities. To fully participate in the new economy, communities
need digital access through broadband, cellular mobility, and capacity development to effectively use
these technologies. Reliable and affordable high-speed internet is critical to removing barriers to growth
and community well-being to enable working from home, remote schooling, moving traditional
businesses to an online format and developing new types of businesses. Improving connectivity
generates opportunities for everyone to learn new skills and access essential services and it will make it
easier for communities to attract new residents and business investment that creates jobs for the
long-term.
Investment in Infrastructure
Local governments recognize that continued investment in critical infrastructure projects that facilitate
the delivery of public services, such as drinking water, sewage collection and treatment, cultural and
recreational facilities, parks and transportation are good investments for everyone and creates primary
and secondary jobs in their communities. Investment in infrastructure addresses environmental,
economic and social dimensions, and is seen as having general economic benefits for all industry
sectors. Several communities have also noted that they have “shovel-ready” projects.
Transit/Transportation
Effective transit and transportation networks are vital for economic recovery as they help bring people
back to work and allow businesses to distribute their products and get the supplies they need. Local
leaders identified a need for transit funding to make up for revenue losses and to enable the service
frequency and safety that will get riders “back on board”. Other transportation infrastructure needs
identified include expansion of highways, increased ferry services and investment in railway and
municipal airports.
Agriculture/Food Security
During the pandemic, it became even more apparent that food security is an essential need. The ability
for small producers to increase their capacity and structural support is needed to ensure food is
marketed, produced, processed, packaged, distributed and sold locally. Local leaders acknowledged that
our reliance on foreign agricultural workers impacts food security and identified an opportunity to
create a skilled domestic agricultural workforce in order to reduce reliance on workers from outside B.C.
Child Care
The provision of childcare is essential for enabling workers to return to work and speed up economic
recovery. Many communities identified a lack of adequate childcare in their communities. Local leaders
recognize that investments in safe, reliable and affordable childcare is vital to economic recovery.
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Low Wage Workers/Employment
The disproportionate impact of COVID-19 on low wage workers especially in certain sectors
(e.g. tourism, retail and food services, agriculture and non-profits), and particularly women and youth,
highlights the need for support for these workers. Local leaders talked about supplementing wages as a
way to stimulate recovery that would also make it easier to recruit for often hard-to-fill jobs. Some local
governments noted that their communities would benefit if they could hire students and others for
temporary positions in the short term, until the economy picked up.
Health Care, Mental Health and Social Services
The pandemic and emergency measures have strongly impacted vulnerable populations. Isolation from
services and support networks has had a profound impact on the homeless population, families living in
poverty, and individuals struggling with pre-existing mental health and substance use issues. Local
governments and non-profit organizations have been at the forefront of mitigating these impacts during
the pandemic. Support from the Province and collaboration with local governments and non-profit
organizations is essential in post-pandemic planning as this provides an opportunity to not just “pick up
where we left off” but re-shape and strengthen B.C.’s health care, mental health and social services.
Tourism/Recreation
Some local governments with great natural assets, noted the challenge of diversifying their tourism
economies to be more resilient over the long term. Investments to support local governments in
enhancing natural assets through the development of trails, parks and facilities such as campsites and
washrooms will help create new jobs, especially for youth, expand tourism and improve outcomes for
people and communities.
Education/Training
A number of local governments identified the need for training programs to attract young people that
can participate in the economy and some others noted that resource-based workers were also going
through a separate economic downturn (i.e. mill closures) and that sector could also benefit from
retraining and education programs.
Clean Energy and Technology
Communities have asked for consistent investment to help them transition to a low carbon future and
support green technology aligned with CleanBC goals. These investments will ensure that communities
and local businesses are ready to seize economic opportunities coming from clean energy and
technology and create more and higher-value jobs. Additionally, local governments noted that
investments in climate change adaptation and mitigation activities and studies would have long-term
benefits.
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Affordable Housing
There is still a shortage of affordable housing in the province. Investment in affordable housing will
reduce chronic homelessness and support vulnerable populations by providing those most in need with
a safe place to call home. Affordable and workforce housing will allow people to return to work quickly
and give them the security they need to fully participate in the economy. Building affordable housing
not only provides much needed housing but employs hundreds of skilled workers and can provide new
workers with opportunities to learn new skills.
Industry/Business Development
Innovation and investment in traditional resource industries such as forestry is a critical component of
economic recovery as these industries support and create jobs in many of B.C.’s rural communities.
Communities and businesses need support to capitalize on innovative and emerging opportunities. Local
governments recognize the need to assist businesses in developing an online presence and the need to
work in collaboration with their local business community on an ongoing basis to promote economic
recovery.
Reconciliation
The pandemic has highlighted the need to work together across communities and regions. Investing in
ways to foster partnerships with Indigenous neighbours that not only support reconciliation but also
builds community economic resilience is a real opportunity before us. There is strong willingness among
local governments to work in collaboration with neighbouring Indigenous communities (as many have
done in COVID-19 response); it was noted that some smaller and rural/remote local governments as well
as First Nations lack resources and capacity for the level of engagement needed to achieve real
economic progress.
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July 31, 2020

The Honourable John Horgan
Premier of British Columbia
PO BOX 9041, STN PROV GOV
Victoria BC V8W 9E1

The Honourable Carole James
Minister of Finance and Deputy Premier
Room 153, Parliament Buildings
Victoria, BC V8V 1X4

Dear Premier Horgan and Minister James:
Re:

UBCM Response to Building BC’s Recovery, Together

On behalf of BC local governments, please find attached the Union of BC
Municipalities submission to the Province’s Building BC’s Recovery, Together
consultation document.
Our submission reflects the results of member outreach undertaken over the
March – May period, as well as more recent local government engagement on
specific policy files such as public transit.
As well, I am pleased to advise that at our July 17th meeting, the Executive
formally constituted a Special Committee on Economic Recovery, comprising
members of the Presidents Committee. We would welcome the opportunity to
work collaboratively with you to share the perspectives of local government as we
continue to move forward with the Restart Plan.
I also wish to take this opportunity to thank you for your leadership as we
continue to navigate our province through this challenging and unprecedented
time.
Yours truly,

Mayor Maja Tait
UBCM President
Cc:

Hon. Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing

Attachment: UBCM Submission to the Province’s Building BC’s Recovery, Together

60 -10551 Shellbridge Way, Richmond, BC V6X 2W9
t. 604.270.8226
f. 604.270.9116
ubcm.ca

525 Government Street, Victoria, BC V8V 0A8
ubcm.ca
t. 250.356.5133
f. 250.356.5119
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Union of BC Municipalities Submission to the
Province’s Building BC’s Recovery, Together
Consultation Paper

1.

Introduction

The Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) represents 100% of the local
governments in British Columbia (BC), as well as eight First Nations members, and
has advocated for policy and programs that support its membership’s needs since
1905.
BC local governments are recognized as orders of government in their respective
jurisdictions under the Community Charter and Local Government Act. As the
order of government closest to its citizens, local government leaders know the
significant impact that this pandemic has had on BC residents; small and large
businesses; non-profit groups and other community-based organizations.
As the recognized, collective voice of BC local government, UBCM is pleased to
provide this submission to the Province’s Building BC’s Recovery, Together
consultation process.

2.

Building BC’s Recovery, Together Consultation Process

The Province’s Building BC’s Recovery, Together consultation process offers
British Columbians an opportunity to provide their feedback either through the
consultation paper, on line survey or one of the virtual town halls. Due to the
personal focus of the Province’s consultation, UBCM was unsure if this was the
appropriate avenue for us to make our views known. However, at our July board
meeting Executive members directed that we prepare a submission to ensure that
the local government voice was heard as part of the Province’s recovery process.
As a result, our submission does not respond directly to the questions posed within
the Province’s consultation paper (page 12) but instead provides an overview of
the feedback we have heard from our members after undertaking our own member
engagement.
So while our submission may not fit within the Province’s template for response, we
note that many of the elements covered within our submission do align with the
provincial priorities identified on page 11 of the consultation paper as follows:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

STRENGTHENING OUR HEALTH CARE SYSTEM
CREATING AND RESTORING GOOD-PAYING AND SUSTAINABLE JOBS
BECOMING MORE SELF-SUFFICIENT
IMPROVING EDUCATION, TRAINING AND APPRENTICESHIP OPPORTUNITIES
TAKING ADVANTAGE OF BC’S ABUNDANT CLEAN ENERGY
MOVING FORWARD ON MEANINGFUL RECONCILIATION WITH INDIGENOUS PEOPLES
BUILDING THE CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES THAT ALL COMMUNITIES

NEED TO THRIVE

• ENSURING THAT BC IS ON A STRONG FISCAL FOOTING

And while our submission may not directly reference all of the identified provincial
priorities, UBCM does have a repository of resolutions and policy positions that
would indicate broad member support for all of the priorities that have been
identified.
In the Province’s consultation paper, it states: “As conversations across the
province move from restart to recovery, it is clear recovery means more than
returning to the past. This is an opportunity for businesses, organizations and nonprofit agencies to help us generate solutions to address the challenges they face.”
UBCM concurs with this statement. By identifying the challenges facing local
governments, as well as possible solutions, we hope our submission helps to
generate new and creative opportunities for BC local government. We view our
submission as a first step to help inform the Province’s recovery process and look
forward to further engagement in the coming months.

3.

UBCM Perspectives on Recovery

Local Government and Financial Recovery
In late March 2020, UBCM reached out to a wide of range of local governments to
gather information on the immediate and projected long-term financial pressures
facing local governments, their residents, and local businesses as a result of the
pandemic. Many local governments identified a loss of variable revenue, the
shelving of capital projects, a re-evaluation of property taxes, new costs of
supporting vulnerable populations, and concerns over reserve restrictions and
looming financial deadlines. In response to these concerns, UBCM raised potential
relief measures with the Province that focused on property taxes, legislated
financial timelines, restrictions on reserves, capital project timelines, grants, and
infrastructure stimulus funding.
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UBCM Submission to Province’s Building Recovery, Together Consultation
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In early April, the Province introduced a financial relief framework that initiated
temporary changes to B.C.’s property tax framework to provide financial support for
businesses and local governments. Among the changes introduced, local
governments were given the ability to borrow, interest-free, from their capital
reserve funds and municipalities will be able to access school tax revenue
collected for the Province until the end of the year. UBCM committed to monitoring
the impact of the measures on local government finances, and working with the
Province to ensure that local governments had the necessary resources to sustain
their communities.
After a second round of outreach, many of our members acknowledged the
provincial measures were a modest first step in attempting to address the
pandemic-related financial challenges for communities. The measures provided
local governments with some flexibility, enhanced cash flow, and short-term
certainty that assisted them in financial decision-making. These provincial
measures were viewed as a tool for governments to use in the interim, as well as
support for local businesses. Even with these provincial measures, many local
governments had to re-evaluate their budgets and make extremely difficult
decisions and adjustments on capital spending, service levels, staffing, and
proposed property tax increases, to ensure continued operation and delivery of
critical services. Many local governments also engaged in layoffs of casual,
temporary and facility related staff in early April, with the continued uncertainty of
the pandemic impacting potential future layoffs.
While there was a general feeling that local governments might be able to
financially weather the next several months, our members expressed particular
concern about their finances in coming year(s). The risk of delinquencies amongst
residential and commercial property taxpayers remains high as the economic
fallout from the pandemic mounts. Local governments are concerned that the
continued loss of non-taxation revenue, coupled with the uncertainty of tax
delinquencies, will hinder the ability of local governments to advance capital
projects, maintain existing essential services, and pay back reserves without
significant property tax increases in the years ahead.
Upon receiving this feedback, UBCM called for additional provincial support
measures in May to address local government funding shortfalls, mitigate the risk
of tax delinquencies, and facilitate a revival of local economies. In particular,
UBCM called for financial support for transit to aid local economic recoveries; an
infrastructure stimulus framework to generate economic returns for communities;
and an expansion of the property tax deferral program to all residents to reduce the
risk of tax delinquencies. A copy of our May 8th letter to Minister Robinson is
attached to this submission.
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In addition, UBCM supported the Federation of Canadian Municipalities’ request for
a minimum of $10 billion in emergency operating funding, with an additional $2.4
billion for communities with transit systems, to be provided through a direct federal
allocation to local governments.
Recently the federal government announced a $19 billion funding program to
support provinces with their recovery efforts, with specific funding to be targeted to
local governments, specifically transit services. On July 22nd the Province
announced it would target up to $1 billion of additional spending to address
COVID-19 impacts and restart plans of local governments and public transit
services, conditional on matching federal contributions under a 50/50 cost-sharing
criteria. UBCM welcomes this announcement and looks forward to working with
the Province to identify how best to support local governments with their recovery
efforts.
Local Government and Public Transit
As noted above, in the early days of the pandemic, UBCM reached out to local
governments to identify their financial challenges. And while we heard predictably
about property taxes, and the loss of other revenue sources (i.e. casinos, parking
and recreation fees) we also heard very specific concerns around transit, and the
significant impact on local government budgets.
UBCM then followed up with officials from BC Transit, TransLink and the Mayors’
Council on Regional Transportation to get a better understanding of the impacts on
transit communities across BC. The financial impact is, and continues to be
devastating.1 In May, the UBCM Executive directed that we offer our support to BC
Transit and TransLink communities to address the problem in a collective way. On
June 16th, UBCM hosted a Public Transit Forum for all BC Transit and TransLink
communities. What we found most interesting was, despite facing major financial
challenges, mayors from transit communities commented on how important it was
to remain on track; how they wanted to be part of the conversation to make transit
more nimble and better able to adapt to these crisis situations.
During the Forum a document outlining draft principles and recommendations was
shared with participants. The document specifically asked the Province to work
with all transit / community partners on the development of a transit recovery
strategy to address the financial impacts; and a rebuilding strategy that would
For example: Kelowna - $3M losses predicted over next 12 months; Nanaimo RD - $2.5 - $3 million in 2020;
Nelson - $100,000 in revenue losses to date; Prince George - $100,000-$200,000 in revenue losses to date.
1
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focus on how to sustain, grow and identify alternative funding models to support
public transit.
UBCM recognizes that the Mayors’ Council is working with Minister Robinson to
address TransLink community concerns, however there is no comparable collective
for BC Transit communities. As a result, UBCM wrote to the Minister of
Transportation and Infrastructure on behalf of BC Transit communities offering to
assist. We indicated our interest in working with the Province to coordinate a
consultation process with affected communities to identify how best to support
them to deliver transit at this critical time, and into the future. A copy of our June
29th letter to Minister Trevena is attached.
As noted earlier, UBCM was pleased to learn of the July 22nd announcement by the
Minister of Finance to earmark up to $1 billion to fund the Province's portion of
municipal and transit services assistance, depending on the outcome of further
federal cost-sharing discussions. We look forward to learning more about how this
funding will be allocated to support transit communities recover from fare losses
and rebuild the system to be more resilient. UBCM remains committed to working
with the Province to identify other funding models to ensure transit can remain
sustainable not only at this critical time, but through the recovery process into the
future.
Local Government and Infrastructure
As the Province turns its attention to the recovery phase of the pandemic,
Infrastructure stimulus has historically generated significant economic returns for
local communities, through increased employment, the flow through of dollars to
local businesses, and the creation of much needed community assets.
When UBCM reached out to its members this past spring about recovery, members
expressed broad support for securing an infrastructure stimulus framework that:
• maximizes flexibility on project category, eligible costs, procurement and
timelines;
• provides 100% funding for any recovery program and/or current infrastructure
program; and
• ensures administrative ease and efficiency in recognition of local staff capacity.
In addition, members noted that any infrastructure stimulus framework should
support “shovel worthy” projects over shovel ready projects, expedite BC
announcements in the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP), and
remove existing federal stacking rules. UBCM believes that the current Gas Tax
funding model is the appropriate model for any infrastructure stimulus framework,
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as it maximizes local choice and flexibility to ensure funds are invested in the areas
with the greatest need and economic return.
An ancillary issue that has surfaced repeatedly in our discussion of infrastructure
stimulus relates to procurement. While we understand existing trade agreements
prescribe specific procurement obligations, our members have expressed a desire
to procure locally, where possible, as means to support local economic recovery.
Local governments have expressed frustration with the BC Bid process, as it does
not permit local governments to hire/buy local due to specified procurement
thresholds. Adjustments to procurement thresholds or processes may provide an
opportunity for economic stimulus, at a time when local economic development is
critical to the overall provincial recovery effort.
Local Government and Broadband Connectivity
Improved and expanded broadband internet connectivity has been, and continues
to be a key priority for UBCM. Its importance has been underscored in 2020 by the
move to work and conduct business remotely during the COVID-19 pandemic. In
the early days of the pandemic local governments with limited connectivity
struggled to conduct normal council/board business in a virtual format. While most
local governments found ways to adapt, there are still many regions of our province
that continue to struggle daily due to the lack of, or inadequate connectivity. The
pandemic has revealed how vulnerable these communities are when disasters
happen, and highlight how important it is to remedy the current situation.
We applaud the Province for expanding the Connecting British Columbia program
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic to help internet service providers (ISPs)
undertake immediate network equipment upgrades to rapidly improve capacity and
internet speeds in underserved areas, but unfortunately it is still not enough. None
of the current funding programs address the issue of existing, dormant backbone
and last-mile infrastructure that either lacks an ISP to make use of it, or is owned
by an existing Internet service provider that declines to activate and use it.
Consequently, action needs to be taken to require ISPs or the owners of network
infrastructure to activate and make use of existing, dormant network infrastructure
to help achieve universal broadband Internet access.
Addressing the broadband connectivity gap is critical to the recovery effort.
Communities need reliable adequate broadband connectivity to conduct the day to
day business of local government; attract and retain business; support distance
education / learning opportunities; access online health support/services; and
ensure that their citizens are able to engage fully in a virtual environment.
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Local Government and Societal Impacts of COVID-19
While much of our submission has focused on economic recovery, our Executive
and broader membership have identified the significant social impacts associated
with the pandemic. As noted in the Province’s consultation paper, hundreds of
thousands of individuals have lost their jobs with those most impacted coming from
the service sectors, notably retail, restaurants, hotels and tourism.
An example of this impact is very clearly evident on a community such as Whistler,
a tourist destination, dominated by service sector employment. The following
account was shared by Councillor Jen Ford, UBCM Third Vice-President:
The Whistler Food Bank saw an immediate and alarming uptick in need
for food security. Prior to Covid, the food bank handed out bags to roughly
45 households each week (one day per week it was open). In the first
week, we saw 100, in the next week we were up to 200, and the peak was
just before the CERB cheques started, there was 600 bags in a week. We
moved to the conference centre with 5 day per week service. The service
has remained strong with an average of 200 bags per week, and will
remain at the conference centre through September. This move made
sense to allow for adequate spacing and processing of the food
donations. There are also outreach services available on site for support
navigating CERB applications, financial support, and multicultural
outreach. Prior to Covid, the majority of people would talk about insecure
and unstable housing as the biggest issue. That has changed
substantially, and it is now job insecurity and mental health.
As far as the tourism impact, Whistler generates 25% of the provincial
tourism export revenue. The closure of hotels and reduced capacity of
restaurants will be felt for many, many months ahead. Many of the local
restaurants have reopened, and all the hotels have reopened, but we're
seeing an entirely different kind of guest who is spending less and staying
for shorter stays, unlike our typical visitor. Every business in town is being
challenged by far fewer workers and few applicants, so service levels are
difficult.

The societal impacts of the pandemic cannot be underestimated. Additional and
ongoing support is needed to assist vulnerable populations that have been
significantly affected. Whether its unemployment, homelessness, substance
abuse/addictions, mental health or other situations requiring social support services,
communities are on the front line working with the Province, local organizations
and volunteers to do what they can to help their residents.
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4.

UBCM Role in the Provincial Recovery Effort

In order to effectively respond to, and recover from, the current pandemic, it is
imperative that federal, provincial, local and aboriginal governments work
collaboratively to address the devastating health, safety, social and economic
impacts that have impacted every resident, in every region of our province and
country.
At the July 2020 UBCM Executive meeting, board members directed that a Special
Committee on Economic Recovery be established to serve as a contact point for
provincial and federal governments to support recovery efforts. The newly
established Special Committee is comprised of the following Executive members:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Mayor Maja Tait, President
Councillor Brian Frenkel, 1st VP
Councillor Laurey-Anne Roodenburg, 2nd VP
Councillor Jen Ford, 3rd VP
Councillor Arjun Singh, Past President
Councillor Craig Hodge, GVRD/Metro Rep.

Members of the Special Committee would welcome the opportunity to meet with
the Province to discuss our submission or any other matters as they pertain to local
governments and pandemic recovery.

5.

Concluding Remarks

On behalf of local governments across BC, UBCM thanks the Province for
undertaking the Building BC’s Recovery, Together consultation process. We
appreciate the opportunity to share what we have heard from our members since
the state of emergency was declared in March 2020.
While this submission is not exhaustive of the issues and challenges facing our
members, we consider it to be an accurate portrayal of the key concerns facing BC
local government. As the collective voice of local government, UBCM stands ready
to work with the Province and offer our assistance as BC moves forward through
the recovery phase.

Attachments:
- May 8, 2020 letter to Minister Robinson
- June 29, 2020 letter to Minister Trevena

Page 81

Attachment #1

May 8, 2020

The Honorable Selina Robinson
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
PO Box 9056 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC V8W 9E2
Via Email: MAH.minister@gov.bc.ca

Dear Minister Robinson,
On behalf of the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM), I wish to thank
you for listening to the range of financial pressures facing local governments that
were raised in our discussions with you and your staff in April. The Province's
willingness to move quickly and develop measures seeking to address those
financial challenges was welcomed by UBCM and its members.
The measures announced on April 16th were an important first step in supporting
our members and their local economies, as they provided additional relief to
small business and gave some flexibility to help local governments maintain
operations. At the time of their announcement, UBCM committed to monitoring
the impact of the measures on local government finances, and working with the
Province to ensure that local governments had the necessary resources to
sustain their communities.
We have since reached out to our membership to gauge the impact of the
provincial financial relief framework, and to identify a stimulus approach that
would assist a post-pandemic recovery in our communities. Outlined below you
will find a summary of our outreach findings, coupled with a request for additional
measures that would address local government funding shortfalls, mitigate the
risk of tax delinquencies, and facilitate a revival of local economies.
Provincial Financial Relief Measures
Many of our members acknowledge the April 16th measures as a modest first
step in attempting to address the pandemic-related financial challenges of
communities. The measures provided local governments with some flexibility,
enhanced cash flow, and short-term certainty that assisted local governments in
their financial decision making. They were viewed as a tool for governments to
use in the interim, as well as financial support for local businesses. It should be
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noted that many local governments had to re-evaluate their budgets and make
extremely difficult decisions and adjustments on capital spending, service levels,
staffing, and proposed property tax increases, to ensure continued operation and
delivery of critical services. Many local governments also engaged in layoffs of
casual, temporary and facility related staff in early April, with the continued
uncertainty of the pandemic impacting potential future layoffs.
While there is a general feeling that local governments might be able to
financially weather the next several months, our members are particularly
concerned about their finances for the following year(s). The risk of
delinquencies amongst residential and commercial property taxpayers remains
high as the economic fallout from the pandemic mounts. Local governments are
concerned that the continued loss of non-taxation revenue, coupled with the
uncertainty of tax delinquencies, will hinder the ability of local governments to
advance capital projects, maintain existing essential services, and pay back
reserves without significant property tax increases in the years ahead.
Expanded Property Tax Deferral Program
Given the risk of property tax delinquencies, local governments are seeking an
expansion of the existing Property Tax Deferral Program to cover all residential
tax payers at a minimum. While the program's eligibility covers a significant
number of residents, there remains a sizeable number of ineligible residents that
require support. An expanded program would mitigate the risk of delinquencies,
and provide a greater degree of certainty for budgeting and long-term financial
planning.
Transit Financial Support
The need for financial support for transit has also emerged as an issue amongst
transit dependent communities throughout the province. Not only has the loss of
fare revenue significantly impacted many local government budgets, but the
decreased ridership arising from physical distancing requirements threatens the
financial sustainability of existing services levels. Transit is a service critical to
supporting local economic recoveries, and UBCM's members are looking for
provincial funding assistance to support the sustainability of transit in their
communities.
Economic Recovery Stimulus Funding
UBCM's members are seeking economic recovery stimulus funding once the
Province fully turns its attention to the recovery phase of the pandemic.
Infrastructure stimulus has historically generated significant economic returns for
local communities, through increased employment, the flow through of dollars to
local businesses, and the creation of much needed community assets.
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To that effect, UBCM's members are broadly supportive of securing an
infrastructure stimulus framework which maximizes flexibility on project category,
eligible costs, procurement and timelines; provides 100% funding for any
recovery program and/or current infrastructure program; and which ensures
administrative ease and efficiency in recognition of local staff capacity. In
addition, any infrastructure stimulus framework should support shovel worthy
projects over shovel ready projects, expedite BC announcements in the Investing
in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP), and remove existing federal stacking
rules. UBCM believes that the current Gas Tax funding model is the appropriate
model for any infrastructure stimulus framework, as it maximizes local choice and
flexibility to ensure funds are invested in the areas with the greatest need and
economic return.
I wish to thank you for your leadership and collaboration on combating the impact
of the pandemic in BC's communities. I look forward to working with the Province
on these proposed measures to ensure that local governments have the
resources necessary to sustain their operations and services while stimulating
their local economies.

Sincerely,

Mayor Maja Tait
UBCM President
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Attachment #2

June 29, 2020

The Honourable Claire Trevena
Minister of Transportation and Infrastructure
Room 306 Parliament Buildings
Victoria, BC V8V 1X4

Dear Minister Trevena:
Re:

Public Transit in BC

On behalf of UBCM I wanted to take the opportunity to update you on work that
we have undertaken to support transit communities in BC. While all BC
communities have been financially impacted by COVID-19, UBCM has found that
transit communities are struggling even more so. I shared some initial findings
when we connected a few months ago, and now have additional feedback that I
felt was important to convey.
In response to member concerns, UBCM hosted a Transit Forum on June 16th for
both TransLink and BC Transit communities. The session was well attended with
over 90 participants and was planned in coordination with the TransLink Mayors’
Council. The Forum opened with a joint presentation by Erinn Pinkerton,
President and CEO, BC Transit and Kevin Desmond, CEO, TransLink on the
state of public transit in BC. Both presenters noted that the next two years will
bring continued uncertainty and the need to be nimble and responsive.
Mayors from both TransLink and BC Transit communities shared the financial
and operational challenges they have faced over the past four months and how
they have tried to adapt. Discussion focused on a draft set of principles and
recommendations that reflected on how to recover from current losses and what
is needed to rebuild public transit.
This document, attached, received
overwhelming support.
And, despite the significant financial losses faced by many transit communities, it
was heartening to learn that over 90% of participants indicated that their
community remains committed to the same growth, transportation and other
local/regional plans and objectives that they had in place prior to COVID-19.
Interestingly, the Mayors commented on how important it was to remain on track;
the importance of continued transit growth and the need to make transit more
nimble and adaptive to respond to these crisis situations.
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And finally, over 98% of Forum participants supported being part of a
collaborative approach (UBCM, BC Transit and TransLink communities) going
forward that would advance the recommendations for rebuilding transit in BC to
the provincial and federal government.
UBCM and its local government members recognize that transit is an essential
service that is key to the Province’s Restart Plan. Based on what we heard from
Forum participants, there is an opportunity for transit communities to help identify
what recovery and rebuilding might look like and to ensure public transit remains
sustainable into the future as the Province continues to re-open the economy.
We recognize that the Mayors’ Council is already working collaboratively with
Minister Robinson’s office and would offer our organization as a body that could
assist your Ministry in establishing an ongoing working relationship with BC
Transit communities.
In closing, we would welcome an opportunity to meet with you to discuss how we
can work in partnership to develop a recovery and rebuild strategy for BC public
transit.
Yours truly,

Mayor Maja Tait
UBCM President
Att:

Principles and Recommendations to the Province for Rebuilding Transit in BC

cc:

Hon. Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing (Responsible for
TransLink)
Mayor Jonathon Cote, City of New Westminster and Chair, Mayors’ Council
Mayor Colin Basran, City of Kelowna
Mayor Jack Crompton, Resort Municipality of Whistler
Kevin Desmond, CEO, TransLink
Erinn Pinkerton, CEO and President, BC Transit
Mike Buda, Executive Director, Mayors’ Council on Regional Transportation
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Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing

Local Government Division
PO Box 9838 Stn Prov Govt
800 Johnson St, 6th Floor
Victoria BC V8W 9T1

CIRCULAR

August 13, 2020
To:

All local government clerks and corporate officers

Re:

Update about Order of the Provincial Health Officer on Gatherings and Events and
Ministerial Order M192

The purpose of this circular is to provide an update about the recently issued Order of the
Provincial Health Officer on Gatherings and Events (Order) and an overview of Ministerial Order
M192 – Local Government Meetings & Bylaw Process (Order M192) and their implications for
local government operations.
We recognize the changes brought about by both the Provincial Health Officer (PHO) Order and
Order M192 may require extra effort from local government staff, clerks and corporate officers
as local governments transition to restart and we appreciate and thank you for the work you
have done during this unprecedented time.
Provincial Health Officer Order
On August 7, 2020 the Order of the Provincial Health Officer on Gatherings and Events was
issued. Under the Order, event organizers must limit all in-person public gatherings, including
local government meetings and public hearings to no more than 50 people.
In addition to complying with previously established physical distancing and hand sanitization
practices, local government are now required to collect the first and last names and telephone
number, or email address of every person who attends a local government meeting or public
hearing in-person.
Local governments must retain the contact information required by the PHO for 30 days, in
case there is a need for contact tracing on the part of the medical health officer, in which case
the local government must provide that information to the medical health officer.
The contact information collected by local governments under the Order is subject to Freedom
of Information and Protection of Privacy Act requirements as well as any internal document
retention policies and practices a local government may have in place.
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Ministerial Order M192
On June 17, 2020 Order M192 on local government meetings and bylaw process was signed,
repealing and replacing M139. Order M192 transitions local governments back to operating
under the normal legislative rules and requirements, while balancing the health and safety
recommendations of the PHO and WorkSafeBC. Order M192 and guidance materials developed
by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (Ministry) also support the principles of
openness, transparency, accountability and accessibility, which are fundamental to British
Columbia’s local government system.
The main changes in Order M192 relate to public attendance at open meetings, electronic
meetings, and timing requirements for passing bylaws.
We encourage local governments to consider what steps they can take to accommodate inperson attendance at open meetings or provide a space where the public can hear the meeting
to understand the local government decision-making process.
We recognize that the capacity, technology and space available to local governments to
conduct meetings in-person and/or electronically differs across the province and have
therefore intended that Order M192 provide flexibility to local governments to decide what will
work best for their community as they continue to reopen under Phase 3 of the BC Restart Plan.
Public Attendance at Open Meetings
Under Order M192, local governments may decide when they are ready to safely provide inperson public attendance at open meetings. We encourage local governments to consider a
phased approach to making “best efforts” to provide public access to open meetings if needed.
A phased approach may include providing limited public access initially to open meetings,
exploring other meeting venues and working toward providing added options (e.g.
teleconferences or live streaming) for the public to participate in meetings if in-person
attendance can’t be accommodated under the PHO requirement that no more than 50 people
be present.
As part of the local government decision-making process, there are several factors a council or
board may want to consider when preparing to hold in-person meetings, including:
• whether the chosen venue has an HVAC system or provides for fresh air exchange (e.g.
open windows/doors);
• posting the COVID-19 safety plan at the venue (consider also posting it at the public
notice posting place and local government website);
• establishing a process for collecting and safely retaining the first and last names and
telephone number, or email address of every person who attends an open meeting inperson;
• the wearing of face masks by elected officials, staff and members of the public when
physical distancing is not practical;
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•

•
•
•

having a greeter at the entrance informing the public about established safety
protocols, including hand washing or sanitization, physical distancing and using a face
mask where physical distancing is not practical or if they are concerned for their
personal well-being;
posting occupancy limits (no more than 50 persons) based on the PHO Order
requirements and WorkSafeBC recommendation and guidelines;
implementing separate entrances and exit points to control the flow of people through
the venue; and,
ensuring washrooms are supplied with soap, water and drying materials so visitors can
wash their hands. Limit the number of people at a time in public washrooms and
establish how often cleaning and disinfection will take place.

If, after developing a plan for meetings, a local government is unable to accommodate inperson public attendance, Order M192 requires the local government to pass a resolution to
provide a rationale for the continued need to meet without the public present. The local
government must also describe what measures are being taken to meet the principles of
openness, transparency, and accessibility. The resolution may apply to one meeting or to
multiple meetings if the same circumstances apply.
Electronic Meetings
Order M192 continues to make it easier for elected officials to meet through electronic
mediums while allowing local governments to conduct their day-to-day business as they follow
PHO requirements and WorkSafeBC recommendations and guidelines.
If a local government meeting is held electronically, we encourage local governments to explore
whether they can provide facilities large enough to allow for physical distancing and, if possible,
locations with HVAC systems or those that provide for fresh air exchange to that enable the
public to listen to or watch and listen to the meeting. This may include exploring another space
at the municipal or board office or another facility where the public could attend to listen to, or
watch and listen to, the meeting using available technology.
We recognize that not all local governments have access to the space or technology to
accommodate the public to listen to or watch and listen to a meeting. Order M192 provides
flexibility so that local governments can pass a resolution providing the reasons for being
unable to provide a facility the enables the public to listen to or watch and listen to the meeting
if this is the case. The local government must also describe what measures are being taken to
meet the principles of openness, transparency, and accessibility in respect of the meeting.
Public Hearings
Public hearings are separate from council and board meetings and are addressed accordingly
under Division 5 of Order M192. Under Order M192, a council, board or local trust committee
of the Islands Trust may conduct a public hearing by electronic or other communication
facilities. These provisions provide local governments and the Islands Trust with another tool to
hold public hearings while complying with the PHO Order on gatherings and events.
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It is up to each local government to decide which format of public hearing is best suited to its
circumstances, whether it be electronic, in-person or a combination of both. Many of the
considerations that apply to in-person open meetings would also be applicable to public
hearings held in-person. In-person public hearings are subject to both Order M192 and the PHO
Order limiting the number of people in attendance and collecting (and retaining for 30 days)
the contact information of those present.
For more information about public hearings under the Order M192 please see “Guidance for
the conduct of public hearings under Ministerial Order M192” available at on the Ministry’s
website: https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local-governments/governancepowers/covid-19.
Timing Requirements for Bylaw Passage
Order M192 repeals the authority for the expedited bylaw passage which authorized bylaw
adoption in the same day as third reading for regional districts and the Islands Trust. Order
M192 narrows the eligibility for expedited single-day bylaw adoption to certain bylaws that are
key to the financial health and operation of municipalities (e.g. Financial Plan, Annual Property
Tax, Revitalization Tax Exemption).
Municipalities can continue to pass certain bylaws, described in Order M192, in a single day to
ensure that they are resilient and flexible in a time of economic disruption and fiscal
uncertainty. The changes ensure that councils are operating under the principles of good
governance, public process, transparency and accountability.
Key Resources
• The PHO has issued Public Health Orders and developed guidance materials for different
sectors, which local governments must consider as they develop plans.
• The BCCDC is the primary source for COVID-19 health information, including prevention
and risk information and commonly asked questions.
• WorkSafeBC has developed industry-specific safety information including a general
guide to reducing risk that may be useful for local governments developing plans for
holding in-person events.
• The WorkSafeBC COVID-19 Safety Plan template may serve as a useful starting point for
local governments to develop plans for in-person events.
Conclusion
We appreciate that local governments in B.C. are addressing many competing issues as we
move through this unprecedented time. The Province will continue to work collaboratively with
local governments to ensure the needs of elected officials, local government staff and the
public are balanced. As COVID-19 is an evolving issue, the Province will continue to monitor the
effects of these measures, consider what other measures may be required and provide updates
of actions taken to support local governments.
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The Ministry will be reaching out to local governments with a survey to understand their
experiences working under the Ministerial Orders. The information received from local
governments will assist the Ministry in better understand how current measures are working
and what addition measures may be needed moving forward.
The focus of the survey will be to gather information about:
o how councils and boards are holding open meetings and public hearings (e.g.
electronically, in-person or both);
o the technology and resources being utilized by local governments for meetings and
public hearings;
o whether there are challenges related to local government procedure bylaws arising
under Order M192; and;
o identifying any challenges or concerns local governments may be facing and
possible solutions to those issues.
If you have any questions regarding this circular, Order M192, the PHO Order, or the survey, I
encourage you to contact our Governance and Structure Branch. You can reach Governance
and Structure Branch staff by phone at: 250 387-4020 or email at: LGGovernance@gov.bc.ca.
We thank local governments for their support and cooperation throughout this process.
Sincerely,

Tara Faganello
Assistant Deputy Minister and Inspector of Municipalities
Local Government Division
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
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Alana Janisse - Village of Zeballos
To:
Subject:

Meredith Starkey
RE: Seaweed Farming Inventory

From: Mairi Edgar [mailto:medgar@cascadiaseaweed.com]
Sent: August 18, 2020 2:14 PM
To: Meredith Starkey
Subject: Re: Seaweed Farming Inventory

Hi Meredith,
I appreciate your time this morning and nice to chat with you! I've put all the information about the project &
Cascadia Seaweed into one email. And, I've attached a spreadsheet with information we're collecting. As I
mentioned, I'm touring the west coast at the moment gathering information from communities for the project.
The project is an Analysis of Capacity of West Coast Vancouver Island Coastal Communities to Deliver Large
Scale Ocean Farming of Seaweed. Over the next year, Cascadia Seaweed in partnership with Nuu-chal-nuth
Seafoods Limited Partnership is gathering information to assess capacity and help with strategic planning for
large-scale seaweed cultivation off Vancouver Island. The team is connecting with communities and gathering
information on infrastructure, equipment, services, workforce etc. (e.g., warehouses, processing plants, docks,
boat rentals, totes, ticketed skippers, deckhands etc.) in the community. The gathered information will provide
significant insight in supporting the goal of building a new aquaculture sector. And, the analysis will point to
gaps in skills and infrastructure to be filled as the sector grows.
Also, here's some information about Cascadia Seaweed.
Cascadia Seaweed is a vertically integrated company, producing seed through to packaged food products
(which will be on grocery store shelves next summer). We are also exploring 3 other verticals for our biomass
which include agrifeed, bio-packaging and medicinal uses. We have a team of 13 people working mostly from
our office in Sidney but also in Campbell River and Vancouver too.
In addition to building a nursery, we are in the process of starting a tank-based operation on land. We
harvested sugar kelp (saccharina latissima) from our test farms this past spring, and this coming fall we'll plant
sugar kelp, winged kelp (alaria marginata) in the ocean and dulse (palmaria mollis) in tanks.
We've been fortunate to partner with Indigenous communities who have available tenures and are interested in
adding kelp to their licenses but each partnership looks quite different. It all depends on the interests and
capacity of the community. We look to create opportunities in these communities via lease revenue,
transportation rentals, contract positions, employment with Cascadia, or a purchase agreement for the seaweed
that is harvested. We're connecting with communities interested or looking for more information. Also, we are
pursuing our own tenure applications as our plan is to scale-up very quickly in the next 5 years.
Because of the benefits of seaweed farming and because the supply cannot keep up with demand, we feel there
is room for many other seaweed farmers and businesses like Cascadia in the marketplace.
https://www.cascadiaseaweed.com/

1
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I hope this paints a clear picture of the project and Cascadia Seaweed in general. Let me know if you have any
questions. I'm happy to interview yourself and whomever has information for the inventory - whatever works
best.
I look forward to chatting again.
Thanks so much!
Mairi
-Mairi Edgar
Manager of Regional Business Development
Cascadia Seaweed
+1 250 202 3268

2
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It is therefore time for the federal government to implement the long-promised universal,
comprehensive, public pharmacare plan. Since the 1960s, five separate national commissions have
recommended that medically necessary prescription drugs be included in Canada's universal, public
health insurance system. Just last year, Trudeau's Advisory Council on the Implementation of National
Pharmacare produced an evidence-based and practical implementation plan that would begin this year.
The creation of a universal pharmacare plan was in the Liberal platform, in mandate letters for the
minister of health and deputy prime minister, and a top of the priority of the NDP, whose support is
critical in this minority parliament.
COVID:-19 has made the case for implementing universal even stronger.
The federal government has the opportunity right now to provide an immediate $3.5 billion for
universal, public coverage of between 100 and 200 medicines of greatest importance to the health of
the Canadian population. This would improve access to essential treatments when Canadians most need
it while, according to the governments' own estimates, save Canadian households and employers
billions of dollars more than it cost government to run.
We ask municipalities to join us in requesting that the federal government by sending your own
message or inserting your community name and letterhead on the attached document requesting the
Federal Government follow through with their Advisory Council's recommendations and move forward
with implementing this program. All messages should be sent to:
Honourable Minister of Health
Patty Hadju
Address Locator 0900Ci
Ottawa, ON KlA 0K9
hcminister.ministresc@canada.ca
Special thanks to:
Professor Steve Morgan, UBC
Melanie Benard, Canadian Health Coalition
Oxana Genina, Canadian Federation of Nurses Unions

Thank you,

Stephanie McGowan,
Councillor
Town of Comox
SMcGowan@comox.ca

Alex Bissinger
Councillor
Town of Comox
Abissinger@comox.ca

�
Pat McKenna
Councillor
Town of Comox
Pmckenna@comox.ca

��
Nicole
Minions
Councillor
Town of Comox
Nminions@comox.ca
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<Insert Town Logo>

Sample Message on Pharmacare Implementation
Dear Honorable Minister Patty Hajdu,
<Insert Municipality Name here> is requesting that your government move forward in implementing a
national pharmacare program.
With the economy in crisis because of COVID-19, now is the time for the federal government to fulfill its
promise to implement a universal, public national pharmacare program. The need for pharmacare has
never been starker.
Rapid implementation of a universal pharmacare system could help Canadian households, businesses,
and municipalities and avoid needless suffering.
Prior to COVID-19, Canada’s patchwork of private and public drug plans left 1 in 5 Canadians with little
or no prescription drug coverage. Canadians were already three times more likely to skip prescriptions
because they could not afford them than residents of comparable countries with universal pharmacare
systems, like the United Kingdom. COVID-19 will make this worse.
Over 3 million Canadians have lost their jobs because of the COVID-19 pandemic and 2.5 million more
are working less than half of their usual hours. All 5.5 million of these Canadians now have less income
to pay for medicines that they or their family members need. Those who were fortunate enough to have
had work-related health insurance may lose that too.
Even before COVID-19, thousands of Canadians already ended up in hospital and hundreds of Canadians
died every year as a result of their inability to afford the medicines they need. More will do so as a result
of their reduced incomes and loss of drug coverage – right at a time when we need Canadians to avoid
hospitals as much as possible.
Canada’s patchwork of private and public drug plans is not just letting patients down, it is also costing
far more than a universal pharmacare system would. Canada spends at least 50% more per person on
pharmaceuticals than countries with universal, single-payer pharmacare systems. Other countries spend
less because they use their nation-wide purchasing power of to negotiate lower prices for brand name
and generic drugs.
The inefficiency in Canada’s system is placing a heavy financial burden on Canadian households and
employers. Local governments are among those bearing this burden. In 2015, Canada’s local
governments spent an estimated $500 million to provide private drug coverage for our public sector
employees. The costs of these plans have increased dramatically since, driven by increased availability
and use of high-cost medicines, the costs of which are very difficult for individual employers to manage.
Having multiple drug plans operating in every province – including multiple private plans for public
sector employees – needlessly duplicates administrative costs and reduces Canada’s power to
effectively manage prices. Wasteful spending on these drug plans has long diverted resources from
services that Canadians need from local governments. Now, with reduced local government revenues
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stemming from the COVID-19 mitigation efforts, the cost of these plans are an even greater problem
across the country.
It is therefore time for the federal government to implement the long-promised universal,
comprehensive, public pharmacare plan. Since the 1960s, five separate national commissions have
recommended that medically necessary prescription drugs be included in Canada’s universal, public
health insurance system. Just last year, Trudeau’s Advisory Council on the Implementation of National
Pharmacare produced an evidence-based and practical implementation plan that would begin this year.
The creation of a universal pharmacare plan was in the Liberal platform, in mandate letters for the
minister of health and deputy prime minister, and a top of the priority of the NDP, whose support is
critical in this minority parliament.
COVID-19 has made the case for implementing universal even stronger.
We are calling on the government to implement universal pharmacare now!
To:
Honourable Minister of Health
Patty Hadju
Address Locator 0900C2
Ottawa, ON K1A 0K9
hcminister.ministresc@canada.ca
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Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing

Local Government Infrastructure
and Finance Branch
PO Box 9838 Stn Prov Govt
(4th Floor - 800 Johnson St)
Victoria BC V8W 9T1

Circular No.

CIRCULAR

20:14

August 19, 2020
To:

All Chief Administrative Officers

Re:

Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program:
Green Infrastructure - Climate Change Mitigation - CleanBC Communities Fund – Open
for Application

The Province of British Columbia and Government of Canada have partnered on the Investing in
Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) to fund Green; Community, Culture and Recreation; Public
Transit; and, Rural and Northern Communities Infrastructure. The ICIP provides communities
across British Columbia a variety of funding opportunities to build sustainable communities, to
help create long term economic growth, and to support a low carbon, green economy.
On August 12, 2020 the Province and Canada announced they are committing up to $47 million
for a second intake of the CleanBC Communities Fund (CCF) under the Green Infrastructure –
Climate Change Mitigation sub-stream of ICIP. Local Governments will be eligible to receive up
to 73% towards total eligible project costs (40% by Canada and 33.33% by the Province).
The CCF supports cost-sharing of infrastructure projects for public use and benefit that focus
on: the management of renewable energy, access to clean-energy transportation, improved
energy efficiency of buildings or the generation of clean energy. Eligible applicants include
Local Governments, Indigenous applicants, as well as Not-for-Profit organizations and For-Profit
organizations (when working in partnership with a Local Government or Indigenous
government).
Program information, including Program Guide, application instructions and links to the
application are now available on the ICIP website: www.gov.bc.ca/Investing-in-CanadaInfrastructure-Program. The application intake is open with a submission deadline of
November 12, 2020.
The CCF program is designed to target projects that will be ready for construction in 2021/22
and that will take up to five years to complete. Grant approvals are anticipated in late Summer
2021.
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The CCF is a collaboration between the ministries of Municipal Affairs and Housing and
Environment and Climate Change Strategy and is an important component of the Province’s
CleanBC plan www.cleanbc.gov.bc.ca. CleanBC puts B.C. on the path to a cleaner, better future
– with a low-carbon economy that creates opportunities for all while protecting our clean air,
land and water.
Please also note that the Community, Culture and Recreation (CCR) and Rural and Northern
Communities (RNC) Programs, under ICIP, are also currently open for applications, with the
second intake deadline of October 1, 2020 for CCR and October 22, 2020 for RNC.
Every grant application is assessed in the context of published program eligibility guidelines and
consideration is given to projects demonstrating alignment with program criteria. This
reinforces the expectation that grant funds are allocated fairly and equitably between
competing projects. Approved applications are subject to requirements and conditions which
are outlined in Section 9 of the Program Guide.
The Ministry is pleased to provide advice on what is looked for in a successful application. For
more information, please contact the Local Government Infrastructure and Finance Branch by
telephone at: 250 387-4060, or by email at: infra@gov.bc.ca.

Brian Bedford
Acting Executive Director
Local Government Infrastructure and Finance Branch
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing
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Correspondence List - COVID-19 Related

From
Emergency
Management BC

July 24 - August 21

2020

0115-01

File #

Disposition

Situation Report: July 22, 2020

0400-20

File

Bill 19 - 2020 COVID-19 Related
Measures Act

0400-20

File

#

Rec'd

Via

Regarding

1

22-Jul

Email

2

23-Jul

Email

Province of BC

0400-20

File;
Agenda

3

24-Jul

Email

Tara Faganello, Ministry
of Municipal Affairs and Ministerial Order 192
Housing

4

31-Jul

Emau

Selina Robinson,
Municipal Affairs and
Housing

BC’s Recovery Conversation and
Consultation

0400-20

File;
Agenda

5

4-Aug

Email

Province of BC

Provincial State of Emergency
Extension

0400-20

File;
Agenda

6

6-Aug

Email

Situation Report: August 6, 2020

0400-20

File

7

12-Aug

Email

Situation Report: August 12, 2020

0400-20

File

8

13-Aug

Email

Emergency
Management BC
Emergency
Management BC

Tara Faganello, Ministry Update on Order of the Provincial
of Municipal Affairs and Health Officer on Gathering and
0400-20
Housing
Events and Ministerial Order M192

File;
Agenda
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Correspondence List

July 24 - August 21

2020

0115-01

File #

Disposition

0230-20
2320-20

File
File

0390-20

File

#

Rec'd

Via

1
2

21-Jul
22-Jul

Email
Email

Ben Pires
BCEDA

3

23-Jul

Email

Village of Kaslo

4

27-Jul

Email

Association of Vancouver
Island Municipalities

5

27-Jul

Email

Island Coastal Economic
Trust

Powell River Receives Funding for Property
Analysis and Attraction Campaign

0230-20

File

6

28-Jul

Email

Mainroad North Island
Contracting

Stakeholder Notification: Site Preparation
for Weather Station Installation - Hwy 19,
North of Campbell River

0230-20

File

7

28-Jul

Email

Mainroad North Island
Contracting

0230-20

File

8

28-Jul

Email

c3Alliance Corp

0390-20

File

9

28-Jul

Email

0390-20

File

10

28-Jul

Email

New Cities Team
Vancouver Island and
Coastal Communities
Climate Leadership Plan

2020 Community Resilience Summit

0230-20

File

11

29-Jul

Email

Mainroad North Island
Contracting

Stakeholder Notification: Sod Removal,
Highway 19A South of Royston

0230-20

File

12

29-Jul

Email

Coast Fire Centre

0400-20

File

13

29-Jul

Email

Colin Filliter, Suavair

Status Report: July 29, 2020
Zeballos Community Wildfire Protection
Plan

14

30-Jul

Email

Ministry of Agricultural,
Science and Policy Division

Information update on Order in Council
#353/2020

0400-20

15

30-Jul

Email

BC Hydro

Street light update and workshop invitation

5500-02 File; Agenda

16

30-Jul

Email

Island Coastal Economic
Trust

17

31-Jul

Email

MoFLNRORD

18

31-Jul

Email

Coastal Fire Centre

Arts and Tourism Projects to Receive Latest
Small Capital Restart Funding
Online Digital Marketing Training to Help
People, Businesses Succeed
Wildfire News - Issue 7

19

31-Jul

Email

City of Fort St John

20

5-Aug

Email

BCEDA

21
22

5-Aug
5-Aug

Email
Email

Coastal Fire Centre
BCEDA

From

Regarding
Colonial Name of our Province
Economic Restart & Resiliency Bulletin
UBCM Resolution: Strategy for Rural
Economic Development Through Health
Care
AVICC Executive Nomination Report, BC
Marine Trails, Southern Resident Killer
Whales

Ditching and Streambed Rehabilitation Little River Rd, Comox
7th Annual Resource Breakfast Series Announcing Speakers
Virtual Wellbeing Cities Forum 2020

BC utilities Commission's Approval of BC
Hydro's Application to Amend the Net
Metering Service under Rate Schedule 1289
Spring Activator Launch Province-Wide for
Business Resilience Program
Status Report: August 5, 2020
Economic Restart & Resiliency Bulletin

0390-20 File; Agenda

7130-03 File; Agenda
File

0230-20

File

0400-20

File

0400-20

File

0400-50

File

0230-20

File

0400-20
0230-20

File
File
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23

6-Aug

Email

24

7-Aug

Email

Employment and Social
Development Canada
MoFLNRORD

25 11-Aug

Email

Recycling Council of BC

26 11-Aug

Email

27 12-Aug

Email

28 12-Aug

Email

29 12-Aug
30 14-Aug

Email
Email

MIABC
Vancouver Island Economic
Alliance
Stephanie McGowan, Town
of Comox
BCEDA
Coastal Fire Centre

31 17-Aug

Email

c3Alliance Corp

32 17-Aug

Email

33 18-Aug

Email

2020 Canada's Volunteer Awards

0400-20

File

Infrastructure Funding Announcement
Municipal Proclamation Request - Waste
Reduction Week 2020
MIABC Board Highlights
Tech Humanist Kate O'Neill Keynotes
Upcoming Economic Summit

0400-20

File

0230-20

File

2470-01

File

0230-20

File

National Pharmacare Call to Action

0400-50

File

Economic Restart & Resiliency Bulletin
Wildfire News - Issue 8
Resource Breakfast Series - Mining Sector
Spotlight

0230-20
0400-20

File
File

0390-20

File

Economic Development BC

Venture Capital Tax Program Webinar

0230-20

File

Cascadia Seaweed

Seaweed Farming Inventory on West Coast
of Vancouver Island

0510-01

File
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Placeholder
Mayor Colborne Report
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CAO REPORT
To:
Mayor & Council
From: Meredith Starkey, CAO Village of Zeballos

August 25, 2020

Council Orientation
Allison Habkirk will schedule a series of zoom meetings to complete our Council orientation. Please
check your email regularly so you don’t miss the invite!
Slope Mitigation Feasibility Study
Emily Mark with BGC Engineering completed her field visit August 11-12, 2020. As part of her visit, Emily
hiked the slope and spoke to residents (where available) of the highest risk properties.
Given the limitations of our potential mitigation construction budget and the nature of the slope itself,
Emily is evaluating the feasibility of smaller footprint mitigation measures that would be engineered
specifically for each property. She provided the example of mesh fencing that can be strategically placed
to capture rock and debris flows with minimal visual impact. This option allows water to flow through,
so she will continue to consider alternate or additional measures to minimize the potential for flooding.
In this case, flooding is a lower risk hazard, but is still a consideration. We also discussed the possibility
of installing a vegetated berm behind homes. This option may be more intrusive than the fencing, but
may provide more effective protection for some lots.
Emily and I will work together to draft an application for the October 2020 intake of the Community
Emergency Preparedness Fund Structural Flood Mitigation grant. This will be presented to Council at a
Special meeting in October.
Housing Needs Report
As previously reported, the community survey for this project has been concluded, and work is
underway to analyse the data and draft the findings into a summary report. Over the next few weeks,
Shannon Gordon with the Whistler Centre for Sustainability will conduct more detailed interviews with
our neighbouring First Nations, local employers and other area stakeholders. This project is on track for
completion by late September or early October.
Public Works Update
The recruitment process for Public Works Foreman continues, with the post closing on Wednesday,
August 26th. I am pleased with the number and quality of applications received and am optimistic that
we will fill the position soon. Throughout this process, Public Works staff have done a commendable job
maintaining Village properties and continuing to provide service to the community.
Work is continuing on a number of Public Works projects, most notably the installation of a fixed
generator to provide power to the Community Hall, Village Office, Fire Hall, and RCMP Station. This
project is funded with nearly $73,000 in Community Emergency Preparedness Fund (CEPF) grants,
$22,900 of which was secured on our behalf by the Strathcona Regional District.
1
Page 105

VILLAGE OF ZEBALLOS
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
REPORT
7:00 pm

August 11, 2020
Council Chambers

PRESENT:
ABSENT:

Mayor Colborne and Staff Starkey
Councillors Faulkner, Smith, Lewis and Janisse

We would like to acknowledge we are on unceded First Nations land of Ehattesaht Chinehkint territory.
As per Procedural Bylaw 518-2018 Sections 1.4, 2.2 and 3.4 sited below, no quorum was present and the
meeting stands adjourned until the next regular meeting.
1.4
1.4.1

QUORUM
A quorum of Council or Committee of the Whole shall be three members.

2.2
2.2.1

REGULAR MEETINGS
Regular Council meetings of the Village of Zeballos shall commence;
a) At 7:00 p.m. every fourth Tuesday of each month;
b) At the Village of Zeballos Council Chambers, 157 Maquinna Ave, Zeballos, BC;
except when Council resolves to hold meetings elsewhere,
c) Shall not continue later than 10:00 o'clock pm, unless an affirmative vote of the
members present extend the meeting time;
except when:
d) A quorum is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for
commencement of the meeting;
e) The said Tuesday is a holiday;
f) The Council resolves to continue meeting on subsequent days.
g) Regular Council Meetings may be cancelled by council, provided that two consecutive
meetings are not cancelled.
h) Regular Council meetings may be postponed to a different day, time and place by the Mayor,
provided the Corporate Officer is given at least 2 days written notice.

3.4
CALL TO ORDER
3.4.1 In the event the Mayor does not attend within 10 minutes after the time appointed for a
meeting the Acting Mayor shall take the chair or in his/her absence the Chief Administrative Officer
shall call the Council members to order and if a quorum is present, the Council members shall
appoint a member to preside during the meeting, or until the arrival of the Mayor or Acting Mayor.
Such person appointed as Acting Mayor shall have all the powers and be subject to the same
rules as the Mayor.
3.4.2 Should there be no quorum present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the
meeting, the Chief Administrative Officer shall record the names of the members present at the
expiration of such 15 minutes and the meeting of the Council shall stand adjourned to the next
regular meeting.

COW 8
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VILLAGE OF ZEBALLOS
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
REPORT
7:00 pm

August 18, 2020
Council Chambers

PRESENT:

Mayor Colborne, Councillors Lewis, Smith and Janisse
Staff Starkey

ABSENT:

Councillor Faulkner

We would like to acknowledge we are on unceded First Nations land of Ehattesaht Chinehkint territory.
CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting was called to order at 7:01 pm.

BUSINESS ITEMS:
1. Lot 501 – Foreshore
Council discussed the current state of the foreshore and wharf area comprising Lot 501. There
are three primary areas of concern, including:




The ongoing misuse of and resultant damage to the seaplane dock;
Erosion of the foreshore, poor drainage, and sink holes; and
Parking management.

Council directed staff to produce a report for the next Committee of the Whole meeting, set for
Tuesday, September 8th at 7:00 pm, to detail a range of options to address these concerns.
Additionally, public works staff will install “No Moorage” signage at the seaplane dock as an
interim solution.
Meeting adjourned at 8:31 pm
August 20, 2020

COW 9
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THE CORPORATION OF THE VILLAGE OF ZEBALLOS
BYLAW # 534-2020
DEFERRAL OF TAX SALE BYLAW
The Village Council of the Corporation of the Village of Zeballos in open meeting
assembled hereby enacts as follows:
1. This Bylaw may be cited as “Corporation of the Village of Zeballos Deferral of
Tax Sale Bylaw # 534-2020”.
2. The annual tax sale for 2020 is being deferred to September 27, 2021.
3. Any taxes that are delinquent will remain delinquent for 2021, with applicable
interest charges.
4. Unless the delinquent taxes are paid before the start of the tax sale on
September 27, 2021, the property will be subject to tax sale on September 27,
2021.
5. For certainty, any taxes that are delinquent, as described in section 246(1)
[delinquent taxes] of the Community Charter, remain delinquent for 2021, with
interest charges that are carried under the Act.
6. The above applies despite Division 7 of Part 16 of the Local Government Act.

READ A FIRST TIME this _____ day of August, 2020
READ A SECOND TIME this _____ day of August, 2020
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of August, 2020
ADOPTED this _____ day of August, 2020

_________________________
Mayor

________________________
Corporate Officer
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